
 

 

THE BOARD OF VISITORS 

OF THE COLLEGE 

OF WILLIAM & MARY 

IN VIRGINIA 

                                                                               
 

 

                                                                               
 

 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

Board Rooms - Blow Memorial Hall 
 

September 21 – 23, 2016 



1 

 

SCHEDULE 
Board of Visitors Committee Meetings 

The College of William and Mary 
 

September 21-23, 2016 
Blow Memorial Hall - College of William and Mary 

 
 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21: 
 

BOARD DINING ROOM 
 
2:15 p.m. Coffee available 
 
 

BOARD ROOM - RICHARD BLAND COLLEGE COMMITTEE 
 
2:30-4:30 p.m. Richard Bland College Committee Sue H. Gerdelman, Chair 
 (President Sydow)  Lynn M. Dillon, Vice Chair 
 Warren W. Buck III 
 William H. Payne II 
 Lisa E. Roday 
 Karen Kennedy Schultz 
 Brian P. Woolfolk 
 D. Jill Mitten, faculty representative 
 David J. Snyder IV, student representative 
 
 A. Approval of Minutes – April 22, 2016 
 B. General Reports 
 C. Action Material 

  1. Resolution 1, pages 12-14 

  2. Resolution 2, page 15 

  3. Resolution 3, pages 16-29 

  4. Resolution 4, pages 30-39 
 D. Informational Material 
  1. Enclosure A, pages 40-64 
  2. Enclosure B, pages 65-67 
  3. Enclosure C, pages 68-72 
  4. Enclosure D, pages 73-74 
  5. Enclosure E, pages 75-77 
  6. Enclosure F, pages 78-83 
  7. Enclosure G, pages 84-99 
 E. Closed Session (if necessary) 
 



Board of Visitors 
SCHEDULE 
September 21-23, 2016 

 

2 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21: 
 

BOARD CONFERENCE ROOM - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
4:30-6:30 p.m. Executive Committee  Todd A. Stottlemyer, Chair 
 (Mr. Fox)     H. Thomas Watkins III, Vice Chair 
       Sue H. Gerdelman, Secretary 
 Lynn M. Dillon  
 Thomas R. Frantz  
 Lisa E. Roday 
 John Charles Thomas 
 
 A. Approval of Minutes – April 20, 2016 
 B. Discussion topics 
 C. Closed Session (if necessary) 
 
 

PRESIDENT’S BOX – ZABLE STADIUM 
 
7:00 p.m. Reception and Dinner 
 

 



Board of Visitors 
SCHEDULE 
September 21-23, 2016 

 

3 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 22: 
 

BOARD DINING ROOM 
 
7:30 a.m.  Breakfast available 
 

BLOW HALL ROOM 201 - COMMITTEE ON ACADEMIC AFFAIRS  
 
8:00-9:00 a.m. Committee on Academic Affairs  Lynn M. Dillon, Chair 
 (Provost Halleran)  Karen Kennedy Schultz, Vice Chair 
 Warren W. Buck III 
 S. Douglas Bunch 
 James A. Hixon 
 Anne Leigh Kerr 
 
 A. Approval of Minutes – April 22, 2016 
 B. Report from Provost 
 C. Report from Faculty Liaison Committee Chair 
 D. Closed Session (if necessary) 
 E. Action Materials 

  1. Resolution 5, pages 102-109 

  2. Resolution 6, page 110 

  3.  Resolution 7, page 111 
 

BOARD ROOM - COMMITTEE ON AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE 
 
8:00-9:30 a.m. Committee on Audit and Compliance John Charles Thomas, Chair 

(Mr. Erdahl)    Christopher M. Little, Vice Chair 
William H. Payne II 
DeRonda M. Short 
Brian P. Woolfolk 

 A. Approval of Minutes – April 21, 2016 
 B. Report from Chief Compliance Officer 
 C. Report from Report from Director of Internal Audit 
 D. Report from Senior Vice President for Finance and Administration 
 E. Closed Session (if necessary) 
 

BOARD ROOM – COMMITTEE ON ATHLETICS 
 
9:30-10:30 a.m. Committee on Athletics DeRonda M. Short, Chair 
 (Mr. Driscoll)  H. Thomas Watkins III, Vice Chair 
 S. Douglas Bunch  
 Thomas R. Frantz 
 Sue H. Gerdelman 
  
 A.  Approval of Minutes – April 21, 2016 
 B. Committee on Competitive Excellence Performance Update 
 C. Fall Sports Update 
 D. Closed Session (if necessary) 



Board of Visitors 
SCHEDULE 
September 21-23, 2016 

 

4 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 22: 
 

BOARD ROOM - COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 
 
10:30-11:30 a.m. Committee on Administration, Buildings William H. Payne II, Chair 
 and Grounds  John Charles Thomas, Vice Chair 
 (Mr. Jones) 
 Warren W. Buck III 
 James A. Hixon 
 Anne Leigh Kerr 
 Karen Kennedy Schultz 
 DeRonda M. Short 
  
 A. Approval of Minutes – April 21, 2016 
 B. Report from Building Official 
  1. Enclosure H, pages 116-117 
 C. Report from Virginia Institute of Marine Science Dean/Director 

  1. Enclosure I, pages 118-120 

  2. Resolution 8, page 121 

  3. Resolution 9, pages 122-124 
 D. Report from Senior Vice President for Finance and Administration 
  1. Enclosure J, pages 125-133 

  2. Resolution 10, page 134 

  3.  Resolution 11, page 135 

  4.  Resolution 12, pages 136-139 

  5.  Resolution 13, pages 140-141 
 E. Closed Session (if necessary) 
 
11:30 a.m. Depart for Integrated Science Center (walk or take van) 
 
11:45 a.m. Dedication of Phase III of Integrated Science Center 
 
  Building Tours and Lunch 
 
1:45 p.m. Return to Blow Memorial Hall 
 
 

BOARD ROOM – COMMITTEE ON STRATEGIC INITIATIVES AND NEW VENTURES 
 
2:00-3:00 p.m. Committee on Strategic Initiatives Thomas R. Frantz, Chair 
 and New Ventures   H. Thomas Watkins III, Vice Chair 
 (Mr. Broaddus) 
 
 A. Introductory Remarks 
 B. Review of Regional Forum on Economic Development 
 C. Closed Session (If necessary) 
 



Board of Visitors 
SCHEDULE 
September 21-23, 2016 

 

5 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 22: 
 

BOARD ROOM 
 
3:00-4:05 p.m. Provost Report and Faculty Presentation Ms. Dillon 
 
 

BOARD ROOM – COMMITTEE ON STUDENT AFFAIRS 
 
4:05-4:50 p.m. Committee on Student Affairs Lisa E. Roday, Chair 
 (Ms. Ambler)  William H. Payne II, Vice Chair 
 
 A. Report from Vice President for Student Affairs 
  1. Beginning of Year Updates 
  2. The First Year Experience 
 B. Report from Student Liaisons 
 
4:55 p.m.  Recess and walk to Tyler Hall 
 
 

TYLER HALL 
 
5:00-5:45 p.m. Tyler Hall Building Dedication ceremony 
 
5:50 p.m.  Walk to Wren Building 
 
 

SIR CHRISTOPHER WREN BUILDING: 

 

BLUE ROOM 
 

6:00 p.m. Recitation of Board pledge, pinning of new members and signing of Board 
Roster Book 

 
 

WREN PORTICO AND GREAT HALL 
 
6:30 p.m. Board Reception 
 
7:15 p.m. Board Dinner honoring retiring Board members 
 



Board of Visitors 
SCHEDULE 
September 21-23, 2016 

 

6 

FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 23: 
 

BOARD DINING ROOM 
 
8:00 a.m. Breakfast available 
 

BOARD ROOM – COMMITTEE ON UNIVERSITY ADVANCEMENT 
 
8:30-9:30 a.m. Committee on University Advancement Sue H. Gerdelman, Chair 
 (Mr. Lambert)   Christopher M. Little, Vice Chair 
 
 A. Approval of Minutes – April 21, 2016 
 B. University Advancement Report 
  1. Alumni Career Networking 
 C. Closed Session (if necessary) 
 

BOARD ROOM – COMMITTEE ON FINANCIAL AFFAIRS 
 
9:30-10:30 a.m. Committee on Financial Affairs H. Thomas Watkins III, Chair 
 (Mr. Jones)   James A. Hixon, Vice Chair 
 S. Douglas Bunch 
 Lynn M. Dillon 
 Thomas R. Frantz 
 Anne Leigh Kerr 
 Christopher M. Little 
 Brian P. Woolfolk 
 

A. Approval of Minutes – April 22, 2016 
B. Investment Portfolio Evaluation Overview 
 1. Enclosure K (see separate booklet) 
C. Report from Senior Vice President for Finance and Administration 
 1. Impact of State Revenue Shortfall 

 2. Resolution 14, pages 146-149 
 2. Enclosure L, pages 150-152 
 3. Enclosure M, pages 153-162 
 4.  Enclosure N, pages 163-164 

 C. Report from Virginia Institute of Marine Science Dean/Director 
 1. Impact of State Revenue Shortfall 

  2. Enclosure O, page 165 
E. Closed Session (if necessary) 

 
10:30 a.m. Recess Committees 
 

BOARD ROOM – BOARD OF VISITORS MEETING 

10:45 a.m. BOARD MEETING - see MEETING AGENDA Mr. Stottlemyer 

 

BOARD DINING ROOM 

@1:00 p.m.  Lunch 



7 

AGENDA ITEMS 
Board of Visitors Meeting 

The College of William and Mary in Virginia  
 

September 21-23, 2016 
 Board Room - Blow Memorial Hall 

 
RICHARD BLAND COLLEGE 

 
Resolution 1, pages 12-14 Appointments to Fill Vacancies in the 

Instructional Faculty 
 
Resolution 2, page 15 Appointments to Fill Vacancies in the 

Professionals and Professional Faculty 
 
Resolution 3, pages 16-29 Resolution to Approve 9c Bond Sale Request 
 
Resolution 4, pages 30-39 2016-2022 Six-Year Plan Update 
 
 
Enclosure A, pages 40-64 Administrative Update:  RBC-19 Progress 

Report 
 
Enclosure B, pages 65-67 2015-2016 Operating Budget Update 
 
Enclosure C, pages 68-72 Exceptional Student Experience (ESE@RBC) 

Phase I Report 2015-16 
 
Enclosure D, pages 73-74 2015-2016 Communication & Marketing Report 
 
Enclosure E, pages 75-77 2015-2016 Residential and Student Life 

Review 
 
Enclosure F, pages 78-83 Report from Faculty Representative 
  
Enclosure G, pages 84-99 Report from Student Representative 
 
 
 
 COLLEGE OF WILLIAM AND MARY 
 
Resolution 5, pages 102-109 Appointments to Fill Vacancies in the 

Instructional Faculty 
 
Resolution 6, page 110 Designated Professorships 
 



Board of Visitors 
AGENDA ITEMS 
September 21-23, 2016 
 
 

8 

Resolution 7, page 111 Faculty Leaves of Absence 
 
Resolution 8, page 121 Resolution to Approve Property Acquisition: 6 

Riverview Avenue 
 
Resolution 9, pages 122-124 Resolution to Approve Land Use Permit from 

the Virginia Department of Transportation for 
Underground Saltwater Utilities at Spencer 
Road 

 
Resolution 10, page 134 Resolution of the Board of Visitors of the 

College of William and Mary 9(D) 
Reimbursement Pooled Bond Program: Zable 
Stadium 

 
Resolution 11, page 135 Resolution of the Board of Visitors of the 

College of William and Mary 9(D) 
Reimbursement Pooled Bond Program: Busch 
Field Turf 

 
Resolution 12, pages 136-139 Resolution of the Board of Visitors of the 

College of William and Mary 9(D) Sale Pooled 
Bond Program: Renovate/Expand Zable 
Stadium and Replace Busch Field Turf 

 
Resolution 13, pages 140-141 Resolution to Approve 2016 Master Plan of 

James Monroe’s Highland 
 
Resolution 14, pages 146-149 College of William and Mary 2016-18 Six-Year 

Plan Update 
 
 
Enclosure H, pages 116-117 College Building Official Report/September 2016 
 

Enclosure I, pages 118-120 Virginia Institute of Marine Science Capital 

Outlay Project Progress Report 
 
Enclosure J, pages 125-133 College of William and Mary Capital Outlay 

Project Progress Report 
 
Enclosure K Investment Portfolio Evaluation for Periods 

Ending June 30, 2016 (see separate booklet) 
 



Board of Visitors 
AGENDA ITEMS 
September 21-23, 2016 
 
 

9 

Enclosure L, pages 150-152 2016 Debt Management Report 
 
Enclosure M, pages 153-162 College of William and Mary 2016-2017 

Operating Budget Summary 
 
Enclosure N, pages 163-164 Statement of Endowment Funds - June 30, 2016 
 
Enclosure O, page 165 Virginia Institute of Marine Science 2016-2017 

Operating Budget Summary 
 







































































CREATE YOUR JOURNEY

RBC-19
Progress Report

CONTENTS
I.  ENROLLMENT 
II. finance & Administration 
III. capital projects 
IV. ACADEMICS 
           SACS MONITORING REPORT (appendices not included)

V. INFORMATION & TECHNICAL SERVICES 
VI. advancement
VII. campus police 
VIII. athletics 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 1 of 25 

 

40



Enrollment 
J. Tyler Hart, Dean of Enrollment Services

Headcount and Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) both increased in the fall of 2016 largely due 
to increases in fall-to-fall retention and Dual Enrollment (DE counts estimated as of 
September 2, 2015). (See Figure 1.) 

Figure 1 

10-Year Enrollment Summary

While fall 2015-to-spring 2016 and fall 2015-to-fall 2016 retention increased (Figure 2), 
and the College realized a 13.42% increase in applications for fall 2016, we failed to 
admit the target number of students and experienced a melt rate of 20% (up from an 
estimated 6% in fall 2015). (See Figure 3.) The increase in melt may have been partially 
attributable to customer service issues associated with a required Financial Aid 
upgrade. These system-related issues have been addressed, and Phase II of ESE@RBC 
features a Student Success Center that serves as a one-stop shop for students seeking 
support services.  

963 911 982

1168 1210
1342

1266 1267
1437

1587

2178
2256

800

1300

1800

2300

1996 2000 2005 2010 2015 2016

Fall - FTE Fall - Headcount

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 2 of 25 

 

41



Figure 2 

Student Retention 

Entering Fall Cohorts 2011-2016 

Figure 3 

Admissions 

45%

47%

49%

51%

53%

55%

57%

2012 2013 2014 2015

Retention: Minorities Retention Overall

1,486 

715 
544 

2,526 

1,150 

735 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

Applied Admitted Enrolled

2013 2014 2015 2016

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 3 of 25 

 

42



Freshman Profile – Fall 2016 
In the Fall 2016 semester RBC recruited 68 honor’s eligible students with a goal of 90 
honor’s eligible students. (See Figure 4.) 

Figure 4 

Statesman Scholars (Honor Students) 

Entering Fall Cohorts 2012 – 2016 

Since reinvigorating the athletic program in 2013, the number of freshman athletes has 
decreased with increased retention of sophomore students. The total number of 
athletes on campus has remained relatively constant over the past 4 years (~90). (See 
Figure 5.) 

Figure 5 

Athlete vs. Non-Athlete 

Entering Fall Cohorts 2012 - 2016 

11% 16% 12% 19% 12%

89% 84% 88% 81% 88%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Fall 2012 Fall 2013 Fall 2014 Fall 2015 Fall 2016

%
 o

f 
St

u
d

en
ts

Honors vs. Non-Honors
Starting Fall Cohorts 2012 - 2016

Honors Non-Honors

0%
14% 12% 10% 6%

100%
86% 88% 90% 94%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Fall 2012 Fall 2013 Fall 2014 Fall 2015 Fall 2016

%
 o

f 
St

u
d

en
ts

Athlete Non-Athlete

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 4 of 25 

 

43



Maintaining a diverse student population remains a priority goal of RBC-19 and the 
Strategic Enrollment Management Plan. 60 percent of the fall 2016 entering cohort 
self-identified as minority. (See Figure 6.) 

Figure 6 

Ethnicity 

Entering Fall Cohorts 2012 – 2016 

In the fall of 2014, with the implementation of the SEM Plan, the College began to re-
shape the residential population by recruiting students from outside of the local region, 
anticipating that students within the three-city/three-county region would have the 
opportunity to commute. (See Figure 7.) Strategically targeting NOVA and Tidewater 
populations while re-building relationships with key feeder schools has been critical to 
the increase in total student population. The residence halls remain a critical aspect of 
the SEM Plan and, even with the addition of 80 beds in the fall of 2017, we plan to 
continue to fill 95% of available beds with students from outside a 30-mile radius. A 
complete dashboard with the freshman profile is attached to this report.  

48% 50%
60% 54% 60%

48% 49%
38%

39%
35%

4% 2% 2% 7% 5%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Fall 2012 Fall 2013 Fall 2014 Fall 2015 Fall 2016

%
 o

f 
St

u
d

en
ts

Minority Non-Minority Unknown

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 5 of 25 

 

44



Figure 7 

Tri-City Region vs. Out-of-Area 

Entering Fall Cohorts 2012 – 2016 

Conclusion 

The fall of 2016 brought a degree of ‘normalizing’ from the 40% increase in fall 2015 

total headcount and 20% increase in the fall 2016 cohort, RBC remains on track to 

achieve the goal of 2,500 headcount and 1,500 FTE by 2019.  Dual Enrolled students 

account for the largest population increase, and because of the quality of these 

students and the opportunity to convert them to full-time enrollments, growing this 

population remains a priority.  The Honors population saw a significant decrease in the 

fall 2016 cohort, but an increase in total population, because of the successful 

retention of a large cohort in 2015. With increased investment in Honors 

programming, this population also remains a top priority, with a goal of 200 Honor 

students by fall 2017. 

69% 65% 60% 58% 60%

31% 35% 40% 42% 40%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Fall 2012 Fall 2013 Fall 2014 Fall 2015 Fall 2016

%
 o

f 
St

u
d

en
ts

From Tri-City Area From Outside Tri-City Area

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 6 of 25 

 

45



	
	

FINANCE	AND	ADMINISTRATION	
Penny	Howard,	Dean	of	Finance	and	Administration	
	
Overview	
The	Finance	and	Administration	unit	of	Richard	Bland	College	consists	of	the	following	units:	general	
accounting,	procurement,	accounts	payable,	accounts	receivable,	cashiering,	budgeting	and	financial	
reporting,	financial	aid,	and	human	resources.			
	
The	unit	in	its	entirety	has	undergone	significant	restructuring	in	the	last	12	months.		This	includes	staff	
turnover	in	all	key	positions,	redistribution	of	duties	and	responsibilities,	the	implementation	of	a	newly	
structured	finance	and	financial	aid	system,	frequent	audits	and	reviews	of	ongoing	process	changes,	building	
and	implementation	of	new	and	revised	standard	operating	procedures,	policies	and	procedures,	and	the	
growing	pains	that	come	from	turning	a	disparate	set	of	individuals	into	a	cohesive	team.	
	
As	of	this	report,	we	are	well	on	our	way	to	functioning	as	a	strong	unit,	led	by	a	knowledgeable	and	driven	
management	team.		We	have	an	ambitious	operational	plan	for	FY	2017,	focused	on	the	improvement	of	
customer	service,	access	to	reliable	data	for	operational	decision	making,	construction	and	documentation	of	
reliable	and	repeatable	processes,	and	relationship	building	with	other	campus	partner	units	to	ensure	that	
we	are	all	delivering	on	the	promise	of	100%	student	success.	
	
Finance	
In	the	last	12	months	the	finance	unit	has	been	completely	restructured	with	a	70%	turnover	in	the	original	
staff	and	the	addition	of	a	key	budget/financial	reporting	position	for	the	unit.		In	that	same	time	period,	we	
determined	that	the	then	current	financial	system	was	incorrectly	built	and	needed	to	be	overhauled	to	be	
useful	in	any	meaningful	way.		We	also	discovered	that	the	financial	aid	module	was	woefully	out	of	date,	and	
needed	to	be	overhauled	as	well.			
	
From	the	period	of	January	to	June	2016,	Finance	and	Administration	also	assumed	responsibility	for	
information	technology	services	and	hired	two	Banner	(enterprise	system)	experts	into	the	college	to	lead	the	
upgrade	of	both	the	finance	and	financial	aid	modules	for	a	go-live	date	of	July	1,	2016.		With	this	behemoth	
task	to	tackle,	we	were	also	part	of	the	Commonwealth’s	mandated	implementation	of	a	brand	new	financial	
system,	with	their	go-live	date	of	February	1,	2016.		Thanks	to	the	very	dedicated	finance	and	IT	staff,	we	were	
able	to	meet	all	of	the	state’s	deadlines	and	go	live	with	the	state	on	time.			
	
Thanks	to	the	newly	hired	financial	and	IT	Banner	staff,	we	also	made	our	very	ambitious	go-live	date	of	July	1	
for	our	own	system	with	very	little	error.		From	that	point	to	now,	we	have	been	building	the	processes	
around	our	new	system,	integrating	the	data	interface	with	the	state	system,	and	revising	our	business	
workflows	to	create	effective	processes	and	to	ensure	that	the	right	information	gets	to	the	right	person	at	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 7 of 25 

 

46



the	right	time.		It	is	still	a	work	in	progress,	but	we	have	made	significant	strides	and	we’re	now	gaining	
momentum.	
	
We	have	also	had	ongoing	audits	of	our	status	in	restructuring	and	revitalizing	this	department	and	its	systems	
since	last	September.		Although	progress	was	slow	in	the	beginning,	it	has	picked	up	momentum	since	April,	as	
we	got	the	last	individuals	hired	and	are	now	on	track	to	meet	operational	goal	dates	for	FY	2017.		We	are	
meeting	our	target	dates	for	financial	statement	data	for	the	FY	2016	consolidated	statements	with	William	
and	Mary	and	the	state,	and	we	have	also	just	finalized	the	Foundation	audit	for	FY	2016,	an	additional	
responsibility.	Processes	for	collecting	and	reporting	data	continue	to	improve,	and	we	are	capturing	our	
standard	operating	procedures	for	each	financial	activity	to	ensure	that	they	are	all	documented	by	the	end	of	
the	2016	calendar	year.			
	
Financial	Aid	
Due	to	unanticipated	turnover,	Financial	Aid	came	into	FY	2016	with	only	one	fairly	new	staff	member	in	
place.		In	November,	we	hired	a	new	Financial	Aid	Director	with	20	plus	years	of	experience,	and	shortly	
thereafter,	a	front	office	staff	member	was	hired.			
	
This	unit	experienced	perhaps	the	most	painful	revitalization	due	to	the	loss	of	most	of	the	department’s	
institutional	knowledge.		In	addition,	with	a	minimally	functional	Financial	Aid	system,	the	new	director	and	
her	staff	had	to	do	most	tasks	manually	and	then	add	the	data	into	the	system	instead	of	being	able	to	rely	on	
the	full	capability	of	the	system	in	place.			
	
A	decision	made	by	a	former	administrator	in	the	prior	fiscal	year	to	move	the	first	tuition	due	date	from	the	
normal	August	deadline	to	late	October	resulted	in	many	students	and	parents	not	addressing	their	questions	
about	financial	aid	until	well	past	the	federal	due	dates	for	the	semester.		This	left	the	office	in	the	position	of	
being	unable	to	help	students	obtain	some	of	the	financial	aid	for	which	they	would	have	been	eligible	had	
they	applied	in	a	timely	manner.	This	issue	was	exacerbated	by	the	spring	semester	applications	and	
subsequent	fall	semester	applications	all	coming	in	at	the	same	time	that	the	office	was	cleaning	up	issues	
from	the	prior	fall.			
	
As	was	noted	in	the	Finance	section,	these	problems	were	compounded	by	an	improperly	applied	system	
patch	applied	by	an	external	vendor,	something	that	was	not	identified	until	we	brought	the	IT	Banner	
database	expert	in	house	in	April.		
	
If	not	for	the	extraordinary	dedication	of	our	new	Financial	Aid	director,	who	put	in	significant	hours	and	effort	
over	the	last	8	months,	we	would	not	be	where	we	are	today.	During	the	course	of	the	spring	semester,	she	
successfully	found	ways	to	assist	most	students	with	eligible	fall	balances	to	obtain	financial	aid	funds	to	help	
pay	their	balances.		She	also	worked	with	the	spring,	summer,	and	fall	2016	applicants	(fall	2016	had	over	
2500	FAFSA	applications	to	manually	process)	to	ensure	that	they	were	helped	while	dealing	with	a	system	
that	was	broken.	She	led	the	successful	launch	of	a	revitalized	financial	aid	system	on	July	1,	working	closely	
with	IT	and	our	financial	aid	back	office	vendor	since	then	to	use	the	full	functionality	of	the	system	by	
importing	FAFSAs	from	the	federal	government	system,	auto-packaging	student	awards,	and	building	out	the	
student-facing	pages	that	let	them	see	and	accept	their	financial	aid	awards.	In	the	last	three	weeks	of	August	
2016,	the	office	saw	over	950	students	in	their	offices,	while	dealing	with	as	many	phone	calls	and	emails	in	
the	same	time	frame.		By	the	end	of	August,	the	office	had	successfully	processed	all	current	student	financial	
aid	and	was	continuing	to	work	with	those	students	who	had	outstanding	financial	aid	issues.	
	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 8 of 25 

 

47



It	has	not	been	a	smooth	process,	but	an	extraordinary	one	given	the	time	frame	in	which	the	turn-around	
was	accomplished.		We	identified	a	couple	of	internal	department	issues	to	address,	and	also	discovered	some	
issues	outside	of	the	control	of	the	financial	aid	office	to	address,	as	well	to	ensure	that	we	provide	the	best	
and	most	accurate	information	to	our	incoming	students.	The	President	has	formed	a	Task	Force	on	Financial	
Aid	to	address	outstanding	issues,	and	work	has	begun.	As	the	federal	government	has	moved	the	opening	
date	to	file	the	FAFSA	from	January	to	October,	we	continue	to	adjust	our	processes	accordingly.	We	are	
currently	updating	the	financial	aid	webpage	to	accurately	reflect	all	the	information	a	student	and	their	
parents	need	to	successfully	and	timely	apply	for	financial	aid	for	the	following	academic	year.	
	
Human	Resources	
A	new	HR	director	with	over	10	years	of	experience	in	Virginia	higher	education	joined	the	College	on	August	
25,	2016.	In	FY	2016,	we	added	1.5	staff	to	the	department	for	a	total	of	3.5.			
	
Pieces	of	compliance	were	moved	out	of	HR	and	reassigned	to	other	areas	that	were	a	better	fit.	EEOC	
remains	with	HR,	but	Title	IX	coordination	now	resides	with	the	Assistant	Dean	of	Academic	Support,	which	
legal	counsel	deemed	to	be	more	appropriate.	The	College	Attorney	and	Chief	of	Police	assist	with	
investigations,	as	appropriate.		
	
The	new	HR	Director	has	hit	the	ground	running,	starting	with	reorganizing	the	unit	into	a	primarily	specialist-
driven	functionality	with	generalist	duties	as	needed.	She	is	reviewing	policies	and	procedures,	communication	
processes,	onboarding	and	off	boarding,	data	collection	and	tracking,	and	hiring	practices	to	identify	gaps	and	
build	solutions.			
	
A	project	to	upgrade	onboarding	processes	for	incoming	employees	was	launched	in	June	and	the	HR	team	
has	been	using	it	and	modifying	it	based	on	feedback	from	new	employees.	We	are	also	investigating	which	
technical	solution	is	the	best	fit	for	RBC	as	HR	relies	solely	on	internal	spreadsheets	to	track	and	document	HR	
data.			
	
As	has	been	mentioned	throughout	this	document,	there	are	a	number	of	goals	in	each	area	that	we	will	strive	
to	accomplish	in	fiscal	year	2017	to	support	RBC-19	and	100%	student	success.	We	will	measure	ourselves	
against	these	goals	and	report	out	on	our	progress.		It	is	an	ambitious	and	aspirational	operational	plan,	but	
one	I	believe	will	be	instrumental	in	improving	customer	service,	strategically	leveraging	data,	providing	
student	support	opportunities,	and	creating	sustainability	and	growth	of	RBC.	Specifically	this	year	we	will	
build	out	our	web	resources	and	presence	to	ensure	that	potential	and	current	students	and	families	have	the	
information	they	need	at	their	fingertips;	rebuild	and	document	our	policies	and	operating	procedures	along	
with	all	relevant	forms	and	educational	material	to	educate	our	staff	and	faculty	for	all	financial	and	human	
resource	workflows;	build	reports	and	dashboards	with	our	financial	and	human	resource	data	to	improve	
operational	decision	making;	and	explore	innovative	ways	to	assist	our	students	with	paying	for	college	as	well	
as	determine	creative	ways	to	build	and	manage	additional	revenue	streams	for	the	college.	We	are	looking	
forward	to	building	something	amazing!	
	
	
	
	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 9 of 25 

 

48



	
	

CAPITAL	
Eric	Kondzielawa,	Director	of	Capital	Assets	&	Operations	
	
	
New	Field	House	-	The	final	umbrella	project	in	this	cycle—construction	of	a	new	4,500	square	feet	athletic	
facility—is	well	underway.	This	project	has	received	all	BCOM	approvals,	and	the	project	has	been	bid	out	and	
awarded	to	Haley	Builders.	This	brick	and	anodized	metal	panels	structure	will	mirror	the	exterior	finishes	of	
the	McNeer	and	SSHE	buildings.	The	structure	will	be	used	as	an	indoor	practice	facility	for	all	athletic	
programs,	as	well	as	the	general	student	population,	both	commuters	and	residential.	
	
Commerce	Hall	/	HSS	Renovation	-	Renovation	of	the	HSS	building,	which	recently	became	vacant	with	
the	re-opening	of	the	Social	Science,	Humanities	and	English	(SSHE)	building,	will	add	78	beds,	along	with	new	
restrooms,	new	HVAC	and	fire	protection	systems,	and	state-of-the-art	common	area	space	for	student	
collaboration.	When	the	facility	opens	in	the	fall	of	2017,	it	will	bring	total	beds	to	nearly	500,	nearly	double	
the	number	of	beds	available	when	residence	halls	opened	in	2008.	Due	to	the	building’s	original	design	and	
utilization	as	a	hospital,	the	conversion	to	a	student	residential	facility	will	be	relatively	simple	and	very	
efficient.	We	expect	to	receive	$2,650,000	from	DPB	through	9C	bond	funding.	The	preliminary	BCOM	
submission	is	complete,	and	we	are	ready	to	submit	Working	Drawings.	Similar	to	The	SHEE	building,	we	will	
undertake	hazardous	material	abatement	and	demolition	as	discreet	projects	at	the	front-end	in	order	to	
expedite	the	actual	time	of	construction	and	save	money	on	any	GC	mark-up.	Completion	is	scheduled	for	
August	2017	
	
Academic	Innovation	Center	-	In	accordance	with	the	Facilities	Master	Plan,	34,000	square	feet	of	new	
and	renovated	space	in	the	current	Library	building	will	function	to	advance	priority	goals,	including	increased	
retention,	graduation,	and	transfer.	The	space	will	be	designed	to	support	academic	innovation	in	online	
learning,	curriculum	design,	OER-enhanced	content,	as	well	as	VLN	(Virginia	Learning	Network)	and	ESE	
(Exceptional	Student	Experience).	This	$23.6	million	project’s	primary	focus	is	on	academic	innovation,	
expanded	access	to	college	credentials,	and	curricular	excellence;	it	involves	24,000	square	feet	of	new	
construction	and	10,000	square	feet	of	renovated	space.	We	have	received	pre-planning	funds	from	DPB	and	
are	currently	working	on	schematic	drawings.		

	
Library	Renovation	-	In	July	of	2016	we	started	Phase	1	of	a	three-phased	project	to	improve	the	library,	as	
well	as	the	cafeteria/dining	area	to	improve	the	flow	and	add	much	needed	capacity	once	the	new	residence	
halls	open	in	the	fall	of	2017.	This	is	the	first	step	in	moving	to	a	one-stop	shop	for	student	support	services.	
Space	inside	the	1st	floor	of	the	library	was	developed	to	house	learner	mentors	to	enable	better	interaction	
with	the	students	and	to	enhance	the	Exceptional	Student	Experience	(ESE@RBC).	The	second	phase	would	
involve	replacing	the	remainder	of	the	furniture	and	adding	much	needed	computer	stations	and	data	drops	
to	compensate	for	our	ever-growing	student	population.	A	major	renovation	to	the	Kitchen	and	Cafeteria	is	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 10 of 25 

 

49



planned	for	Phase	Three.	To	better	serve	students	and	other	diners,	this	phase	will	bring	all	new	kitchen	
equipment,	including	a	dish	wash	station,	and	kiosks	to	provide	better,	healthier	and	more	diverse	meal	
options.	
	
Safety	and	Security	Enhancements			

• In	August	of	2016	all	antiquated	access	controls	in	both	Patriot	and	Freedom	residence	halls	were	
converted	from	the	old	Continental	Access	to	more	updated	RS-2	systems.	

• A	pilot/	sample	program	was	introduced	by	converting	to	stronger	locking	system	strikes,	and	
additional	hardware	was	added	to	better	secure	individual	apartments.	

• Purchase	orders	have	been	issued	to	replace	the	outdated	analog	camera	system	throughout	the	
Residence	Halls	with	an	improved	IP-based	system	that	features	better	viewing	angles	and	more	pixels	
for	better	vision.	

• In	July,	the	rear	bank	of	Statesman	Hall	doors	were	replaced	in	the	interest	of	student	safety	and	
security.	We	also	upgraded	access	controls,	and	we	are	currently	looking	into	providing	security	
cameras	throughout.	
	

	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 11 of 25 

 

50



	
	

ACADEMICS	
Dr.	Vern	Lindquist,	Dean	of	Faculty	&	Chief	Academic	Officer	
	
With	the	Fall	semester	and	the	new	academic	year	in	full	swing,	I	am	pleased	to	report	that	we	are	beginning	
our	activities	this	September	with	five	new	full-time	faculty.	Though	their	backgrounds	vary,	they	share	an	
excellent	preparation	for	undergraduate	education	and	general	scholarship.	
		

	
	

We	will	focus	this	fall	on	promoting	the	online	AS	in	business	degree	and	the	equine	therapy	certificate	as	well	
as	expanding	equine	activities	to	include	courses	in	horseback	riding	and	non-credit	programming	in	equine-

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 12 of 25 

 

51



assisted	activities	for	business	and	industry	groups.	In	addition,	with	the	addition	to	our	full-time	staff	(on	a	
temporary	basis	for	now)	of	a	music	faculty	member,	we	will	explore	additional	courses	and	programming,	
both	credit-	and	non-credit,	in	music	performance.	This	new	faculty	member,	Celia	Brockway,	has	already	
organized	a	pep	band	on	campus	for	basketball	games	and	will	be	beginning	a	chorus	class	in	our	late-start	
semester,	reviving	the	performing	arts	on	campus.	
	
To	allow	us	to	offer	a	greater	percentage	of	programming	at	some	of	our	dual-enrollment	sites,	I	will	be	
preparing	a	substantive	change	document	for	SACSCOC	in	a	few	weeks.	This	will	be	asking	for	SACSCOC	to	
sanction	over	50%	of	the	degree	to	be	offered	at	off-campus	sites.		
	
The	focus	of	last	spring	and	summer’s	work	was	the	preparation	for	and	writing	of	our	SACSCOC	Monitoring	
Report,	which	details	our	progress	towards	compliance	with	the	Assessment	of	Learning	Outcomes	(Standard	
3.3.1.1).	In	this,	the	faculty	have	made	significant	progress,	as	evidenced	in	the	report	itself.	We	have	a	
comprehensive	academic	assessment	plan,	measurable	outcomes	for	each	course	which	themselves	map	to	
our	common	programmatic	learning	outcomes,	and	data	which	demonstrates	that	we	assess	our	progress	
towards	meeting	these	outcomes	and	make	curricular	and	other	changes	to	improve	student	performance	in	
these	outcomes.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 13 of 25 

 

52



SACS	Monitoring	Report	
	
	
CS	3.3.1.1	
The	institution	should	provide	evidence	that	it	identifies	expected	learning	outcomes	to	include	student	
learning	outcomes,	assesses	the	extent	to	which	it	achieves	these	outcomes,	and	uses	the	results	to	make	
improvements	based	upon	analysis	of	assessment	for	each	of	its	academic	programs.	If	sampling	is	used,	the	
institution	should	provide	a	representative	sample	that	reflects	its	mission	and	the	full	array	of	educational	
programs	offered,	at	all	degree	levels.	
	
History	
	

This	monitoring	report	is	in	response	to	the	request	made	by	the	SACSCOC	Board	of	Trustees	on	19	

January	2016	referencing	Richard	Bland	College’s	Referral	Report	from	the	submission	of	our	Fifth-Year	

Interim	Report	in	December,	2014.	In	our	Referral	Report,	we	were	responding	to	this	statement	by	the	Board:	

The	institution	should	provide	evidence	that	it	identifies	expected	learning	outcomes	to	include	student	

learning	outcomes,	assesses	the	extent	to	which	it	achieves	these	outcomes,	and	uses	the	results	to	

make	improvements	based	upon	analysis	of	assessment	for	each	of	its	academic	programs.	If	sampling	

is	used,	the	institution	should	provide	a	representative	sample	that	reflects	its	mission	and	the	full	array	

of	educational	programs	offered,	at	all	degree	levels.	

We	responded	in	the	subsequent	Referral	Report	that,	though	Richard	Bland	College	had	previously	provided	

evidence	that	it	had	a	draft	of	a	comprehensive	academic	assessment	plan,	including	syllabi	from	courses	with	

identified	measurable	student	learning	outcomes	and	the	rubric	to	be	used	for	assessing	those	outcomes,	we	

were	too	early	along	in	this	process	to	demonstrate	fully	that	we	engaged	in	institutional	effectiveness	within	

its	academic	programs:	we	were	unable	to	provide	at	that	time	data	to	show	we	were	implementing	the	plan	

and	were	using	the	results	of	the	assessment	plan	to	improve	outcomes	for	our	students.	We	ourselves	noted,	

that	“some	important	steps	remain	in	our	efforts	to	demonstrate	more	thorough	compliance:	we	must	re-

assess	all	learning	outcome	areas	so	that	we	can	show	that	the	curricular	changes	resulting	from	our	first	

round	of	assessments	have	had	positive	benefits	for	our	students.”	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 14 of 25 

 

53



The	response	to	that	Referral	Report,	received	by	us	in	January	of	this	year,	noted	our	progress	in	

demonstrating	compliance	in	this	area,	but	recognized,	as	we	did,	that	we	needed	more	time	to	fully	

implement	our	assessment	plan	(which	we	include	as	an	attachment).		We	have	used	our	time	wisely	and	have	

come	a	long	way	in	the	year	since	writing	our	Referral	Report.	

Current	Request	of	the	Commission	

The	institution	has	finalized	a	comprehensive	academic	assessment	plan	with	identified	student	

learning	outcomes	and	is	beginning	to	assess	and	collect	data	in	the	areas	of	math	and	English.	Faculty	

members	have	also	started	analyzing	the	data	and	formulating	plans	of	action	to	bring	about	change.	

The	institution,	by	its	own	account,	needs	more	time	to	demonstrate	compliance.		

Response	

Richard	Bland	College	is	unique	in	Virginia	(and	perhaps	in	the	two-year	system	generally)	in	that	it	

only	offers	general	liberal	arts	transfer	degrees	(AA	and	AS).		This	is	in	line	with	our	college’s	mission,	which	is	

“To	prepare	students	for	university	transfer	through	academically	rigorous	programs	grounded	in	the	liberal	

arts	tradition	of	William	&	Mary….”	The	degrees	we	offer	(the	general	liberal	arts	AA,	and	the	various	liberal	

arts	AS	degrees:	business,	behavioral	science,	math,	and	physical/life/clinical	lab	science)	are	really	interest	

tracks	for	marketing	purposes	rather	than	stand-alone	programs	with	unique	experiences	and	expected	

outcomes.	In	fact,	when	we	were	approved	by	the	State	Council	for	Higher	Education	in	Virginia	to	offer	these	

tracks	as	degrees,	we	made	it	clear	at	that	time	that	we	were	merely	reclassifying	what	had	been	longstanding	

advising	tracks	into	these	degrees	for	ease	of	marketing	and	advising.		

Therefore,	in	consonance	with	our	institutional	mission,	all	of	RBC’s	programs	share	the	same	expected	

Programmatic	Outcomes,	which	at	RBC	we	call	“Curriculum	Goals”.	They	are	listed	in	our	current	college	

catalog	(www.rbc.edu/my-rbc/college-catalog/section-vii-academics/):	

	
	
	
	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 15 of 25 

 

54



The	following	college-wide	curriculum	goals	have	been	adopted.	Upon	graduation	from	Richard	Bland	
College,	the	student	will	have	acquired:	

• The	ability	to	analyze	and	critique	information	through	accurate	reading,	listening,	and	logical	
thinking,	and	the	ability	to	acquire,	organize,	document,	and	present	written	and	oral	information	
clearly,	precisely,	and	correctly	

• The	ability	to	acquire,	process,	understand,	and	use	quantitative	data	
• An	understanding	of	how	major	historical	factors	and	events	have	influenced	the	development	of	

civilization	
• An	understanding	of	major	natural	laws	and	theories	that	govern	our	universe	and	the	ability	to	

apply	the	scientific	method	to	the	acquisition	of	knowledge	and	problem-solving	
• An	understanding	of	major	social	forces	that	have	shaped	and	continue	to	shape	contemporary	

society	
• An	understanding	of	the	human	experience	as	revealed	through	creative	expressions	from	the	

humanities	
• An	understanding	of	the	components	of	a	healthful	lifestyle,	including	the	benefits	of	physical	

fitness	(Slated	to	be	deleted	from	the	list)	
	

To	assess	these	programmatic	outcomes,	Richard	Bland	College	maps	the	aggregate	success	in	the	measurable	

learning	outcomes	from	specific	courses	into	the	outcomes	above.		We	believe	this	allows	us	to	use	as	many	

pieces	of	evidence	as	possible,	in	line	with	Michael	Middaugh’s	stricture	in	Planning	and	Assessment	in	Higher	

Education:	“A	comprehensive	assessment	of	cognitive	gains	among	students	at	a	college	or	university	requires	

multiple	measures	and	multiple	pieces	of	evidence”	(90).	We	map	the	student	learning	outcomes	from	the	

course-level	assessments	as	follows	(from	our	Academic	Assessment	Plan,	attached	in	the	thumb	drive):	

• The	ability	to	analyze	and	critique	information	through	accurate	reading,	listening,	and	logical	thinking,	
and	the	ability	to	acquire,	organize,	document,	and	present	written	and	oral	information	clearly,	
precisely,	and	correctly	(English,	speech,	philosophy	and	literature	courses—Goal	1)	

• The	ability	to	acquire,	process,	understand,	and	use	quantitative	data	(mathematics,	business	and	
computer	science	courses—Goal	2)	

• An	understanding	of	how	major	historical	factors	and	events	have	influenced	the	development	of	
civilization	(history	courses—Goal	3)	

• An	understanding	of	major	natural	laws	and	theories	that	govern	our	universe	and	the	ability	to	apply	
the	scientific	method	to	the	acquisition	of	knowledge	and	problem-solving	(science	courses,	including	
biology,	chemistry,	physics,	and	anatomy—Goal	4)	

• An	understanding	of	major	social	forces	that	have	shaped	and	continue	to	shape	contemporary	society	
(sociology,	geography,	religion,	philosophy	and	psychology	courses—Goal	5)	

• An	understanding	of	the	human	experience	as	revealed	through	creative	expressions	from	the	
humanities	(courses	in	art	and	music—Goal	6)	
	

After	our	most	recent	round	of	data	collection	in	the	Spring	2016	semester	(without	Goal	3,	which	comes	up	

this	fall),	our	current	snapshot	of	our	success	in	achieving	our	goals	for	these	learning	outcomes	is	as	follows:		

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 16 of 25 

 

55



	

As	our	Assessment	Plan	mandates,	faculty	are	currently	reviewing	the	data	(both	this	first	snapshot	of	

the	dashboard	of	programmatic	outcomes	and	the	department-level	data).	Not	only	will	faculty	review	the	

data	in	terms	of	how	well	students	are	learning	at	the	program	level;	they	will	also	be	checking	the	alignment	

of	the	program	learning	outcomes	themselves:	As	Mary	J.	Allen	explains:		

Alignment	is	a	key	assessment	concept.	A	cohesive	curriculum	is	aligned	with	program	learning	

objectives—it	is	designed	to	systematically	introduce	and	develop	student	mastery	of	program	

objectives.	Courses	are	designed	for	this	cohesive	curriculum	by	aligning	course	objectives	with	

program	objectives.	(Assessing	Academic	Programs	in	Higher	Education,	154-56).	

The	process	outlined	in	our	plan	is:	

Faculty	will	review	these	data	yearly	(generally,	in	the	fall	semesters)	and	consider	programmatic	and	
curricular	changes	for	each	programmatic	goal	driven	by	the	data.	Our	preliminary	default	benchmark	
is	70%	success	in	each	programmatic	area.	The	process	for	that	review	is	as	follows:	

• As	indicated	on	the	reporting	form	template	on	the	following	pages,	individual	faculty	members	
will	review	their	own	course	data	and	document	changes	they	will	make	to	their	courses	as	a	
result.	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 17 of 25 

 

56



• Data	from	each	area	will	be	aggregated	and	distributed	to	academic	departments,	who	will	
discuss	the	overall	results	and	recommend	department-level	curricular	actions.	

• The	Curriculum/Instructional	Programs	committee	will	review	the	annual	snapshot	of	the	
dashboard	of	our	performance	on	all	of	the	programmatic	outcomes	and	recommend	actions	to	
be	taken	by	departments	or	the	institution	itself.	

• The	Academic	Standards	committee	will	review	the	annual	snapshot	of	the	dashboard	of	our	
performance	on	all	programmatic	outcomes	and	recommend	changes	to	the	assessment	
standards	and/or	methodology	of	the	assessment	plan.		

	
In	this	way,	the	assessment	plan	ensures	that	both	course-level	and	programmatic	outcomes	are	
regularly	assessed	and	that	the	results	of	those	assessments	will	themselves	be	used	to	drive	changes	in	
curriculum,	delivery,	or	institutional	support—and	that	the	system	itself	will	be	recursive.	(Assessment	
Plan,	4)	
	
All	courses	at	Richard	Bland	College	have	identified	measurable	student	learning	outcomes,	and	we	

have	gone	through	two	of	the	three	years	of	assessment	mapped	out	in	our	plan—we	are	on	schedule	and	on	

track.	Samples	of	the	most	recent	assessment	results	for	each	programmatic	area	appear	the	print	appendix	

(with	the	exception	of	history,	which	is	not	scheduled	for	assessment	until	this	Fall)	and	the	complete	

assessment	results	are	on	the	thumb	drive.	

In	addition,	in	the	programmatic	areas	of	mathematics	and	English,	the	results	of	prior	assessments	

were	the	fuel	for	curricular	and	programmatic	changes	which	have	themselves	been	assessed	and	are	showing	

early	promise.	In	English,	faculty	are	working	on	a	pilot	project	for	teaching	developmental	English	(the	“ALP”	

model—accelerated	learning	program,	based	on	a	co-requisite	strategy)	to	address	some	of	the	structural	

weaknesses	of	our	English	program	brought	to	light	by	the	first	round	of	assessment	data	and	the	ensuing	

discussions.	The	evaluation	of	the	effectiveness	of	the	first	pilot	semesters	has	just	been	completed,	and	is	

also	included	in	the	appendix.	In	short,	students	are	more	successful	in	the	one-semester	ALP	pilot	than	in	the	

two-semester,	which	means	that	students’	progress	towards	graduation	has	been	significantly	improved	at	no	

additional	cost	to	them.	Future	rounds	of	assessment	will	test	whether	or	not	the	programmatic	outcomes	are	

also	positively	affected	by	our	having	addressed	the	structural	issues	in	English	(which	seems	likely,	as	

indicated	by	our	10%	greater	success	rate	in	ENGL	101).	

In	mathematics,	the	data	and	the	discussions	engendered	by	the	analysis	of	that	data	have	caused	the	

college	to	begin	a	pilot	program	(which	has	just	completed)	to	help	students	get	past	developmental	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 18 of 25 

 

57



mathematics	and	into	credit-bearing	courses	more	quickly.	The	program	is	fueled	by	technology—ALEKS	is	the	

name	of	the	tool—and	it	appears	not	only	to	help	students	through	mathematics	more	quickly	than	standard	

courses,	it	also	allows	faculty	to	have	an	incredibly	detailed	analysis	of	each	student’s	areas	of	weakness	so	

that	they	can	be	addressed	individually.	The	summer	program	will	definitely	continue	next	year,	and	faculty	

will	also	be	using	the	tool	in	the	regular	semester,	comparing	its	results	to	the	results	of	standard	sections.	If	

the	results	are	as	we	suspect	they	will	be,	it	will	completely	redefine	how	mathematics	is	taught	here	at	

Richard	Bland	College.	A	screenshot	of	what	instructors	using	ALEKS	can	see	about	their	students’	learning	is	

included	in	the	appendix.	As	with	English,	the	plan	is	to	reassess	to	ensure	that	the	changes	not	only	move	

students	to	degree	more	quickly,	but	also	positively	affect	their	performance	in	the	programmatic	outcome.	

As	we	predicted	in	our	Referral	Report,	we	now	have	continuous	improvement	hard-wired	into	our	

processes,	and	are	now	beginning	to	demonstrate	excellence	in	the	area	of	the	assessment	of	learning	

outcomes.	We	anticipate	being	able	to	report	even	more	actions	when	we	prepare	our	self-study	document	

next	year.	

	

	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 19 of 25 

 

58



	
	

INFORMATION	&	TECHNICAL	SERVICES	
Kenneth	O.	LaTessa,	Ph.D.,	Chief	Information,	Strategy	&	Innovation	Officer	
	
Upon	arrival	on	June	13,	2016,	I	undertook	an	in-depth	analysis	into	technical	processes,	procedures,	systems	
and	personnel.	From	that	analysis	the	following	was	readily	determined:	

1. The	internal	infrastructure	and	backbone	across	campus	was	competently	planned,	is	very	stable	and	well-
maintained.	Major	improvements	in	security	auditing	and	processes	had	been	recently	initiated	and	were	having	
a	positive	effect.	

2. Poorly	defined	business	processes	were	supported	by	technologies	that	could	not	(and	likely	never	would)	
achieve	any	level	of	efficiency.	A	lack	of	technical	governance	and	strategy	created	a	topography	of	systems	that	
were	disconnected,	lacked	functional	purpose	and	were	generating	manual	task	workloads	that	are	not	
sustainable	nor	scalable.	

3. Disconnected	systems	were	the	cause	of	manually	intensive,	difficult	to	reproduce	reporting	processes;	key	data	
points	were	not	readily	available.	A	number	of	primary	systems	were	not	being	maintained	and	had	thus	
become	antiquated	or	were	experiencing	failure	requiring	regular	manual	intervention.	

4. Technical	staff,	though	qualified	and	good	intentioned,	lacked	leadership	and	focus.	Additionally,	no	good	
engagement	processes	existed	for	the	control	and	queuing	of	requested	technical	work	(or	campus-wide	work	
for	that	matter).	They	had	positive	attitudes,	a	belief	in	the	mission	and	a	great	depth	of	campus	domain	
knowledge.	Gaps	in	needed	skill	sets	existed	and	there	was	no	plan	for	ongoing	professional	development.	

5. A	number	of	important	initiatives	had	been	started,	advanced	to	a	point	and	then	stalled.	

With	the	initial	research	complete,	a	strategic	90-day	plan	was	drafted	and	put	into	motion	with	the	primary	
objective	of	creating	a	level	of	stability.	The	plan	was	divided	into	five	(5)	key	areas:	infrastructure,	
institutional	research,	process	improvement,	systems	&	software	and	technical	resources.	The	plan	is	in	
process	and	will	effectively	run	between	July	1	and	September	30,	2016.	On	October	3,	the	initial	plan	will	be	
replaced	with	a	complete	operational	plan,	currently	being	drafted,	for	the	remainder	of	the	fiscal	year.	
The	following	is	a	summary	glance	of	the	key	initiatives	in	that	90-plan	and	the	current	status:	

A. Access	to	the	secure	RBC	wireless	network	added	to	the	residence	halls	to	streamline	business	processes	and	
support	the	Office	of	Residence	Life	staff.	100%	complete	

B. Systems	and	software	supporting	the	access	controls	in	the	residence	halls	upgraded	to	supported	versions	to	
provide	more	stability	and	a	pathway	for	ongoing,	preventative	maintenance	and	to	put	all	access	functionality	
under	one	centralized	system.	100%	complete	

C. Camera	systems	in	the	residence	halls	upgraded	to	improve	the	level	of	security,	provide	more	stability	and	
support	ongoing	maintenance	and	to	centralize	the	management	across	campus	under	a	single	system.		60%	
complete	

D. A	proprietary	predictive	model	created	to	replace	the	one	initially	developed	by	Portal.	As	a	stop-gap	solution,	a	
report	generated	and	provided	to	Learner	Mentors	on	a	scheduled	basis	to	support	interventions	and	their	work	
as	advisors.	100%	complete	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 20 of 25 

 

59



E. Implementation	plan	for	the	installation	of	the	Copley	Retention	System	as	the	long	term	solution	to	support	
Learner	Mentor	activities	as	well	as	campus	wide	engagement	with	students.		Plan	100%	complete;	
implementation	by	Spring	2017;	full	roll-out	in	Fall	2017	

F. Analysis	and	mapping	of	the	onboarding/off-boarding	process	for	all	faculty	&	staff	to	determine	gaps	in	process	
and	supporting	technical	systems.	100%	complete	

G. Implementation	of	housing	system	to	support	the	business	processes	of	residence	life.	Go-live	date	is	2/1/2017.	
25%	complete	

H. Implementation	of	print	management	to	reduce	consumable	and	internal	costs	associated	with	the	large	usage	
of	print/copier	technology	on	campus.	Go	live	date	is	Spring	2017.	50%	complete	

I. Implementation	of	a	centralized	service	request	system	to	support	the	workload	queue	of	Information	&	
Technology	Services,	Facilities,	Residence	Life,	Auxiliary	Services	and	Communications.	85%	complete	

J. Implementation	of	strategic	planning	software	to	support	ongoing	monitoring	and	management	of	RBC-19	and	
all	internal	operational	plans	and	projects.	90%	complete	

K. Preliminary	creation	of	a	centralized	data	warehouse	that	consolidates	key	informational	data	to	support	the	
admission	funnel	and	student	onboarding	process	through	synchronization	and	business	intelligence.	75%	
complete	

L. Replacement	of	the	online	college	application	with	a	more	robust,	maintainable	solution	that	allows	for	better	
management	of	the	admissions	funnel	and	to	support	additional	business	intelligence	in	the	process.	Slated	to	
start	9/15	

M. Document	management	and	intranet	development	initiative	to	support	improved	business	process	flow,	student	
records	retention	and	centralized	information.	This	project	has	actually	now	been	divided	into	2	specific	
initiatives:	student	records	and	intranet/document	management	because	of	the	large	scope.	Student	records	is	
in	progress	with	a	Spring	2017	implementation	date;	15%	complete.	Intranet	will	not	start	until	Spring.	

N. Technical	resource	acquisition	in	project	management	and	business	process	analysis	(hired),	technical	support	
(hired),	development	(search	underway)	and	infrastructure/systems	support	(not	started).		

Time	has	been	spent	focusing	staff	on	initiatives	and	processes	that	matter,	centralizing	responsibility	in	
appropriate	roles,	and	setting	expectations	around	accountability	and	what	customer	service	should	mean.	
Additionally,	technical	employees	are	being	mentored	to	think	strategically	about	their	workloads	and	to	
understand	how	wasted	time	or	efforts	can	impact	the	entire	ecosystem.	Processes	for	key	functional	areas	to	
request	technical	resources	and/or	systems	now	exist;	these	allow	for	oversight	so	that	higher-level	decisions	
about	the	long	term	impact	of	systems	can	be	considered.	From	my	perspective,	we	are	moving	very	quickly	in	
the	correct	direction.	
	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 21 of 25 

 

60



	
	

ADVANCEMENT	
Mary	Beth	Poma,	Director	of	Advancement	
	
The	Advancement	function	at	Richard	Bland	College	is	evolving	quickly.	We	are	focusing	our	efforts	in	four	
important	areas:	(1)	Foundation	Board	Development,	(2)	Alumni	Relations,	(3)	Prospect	and	Fund	
Development,	and	(4)	Advancement	Operations	and	Staffing.	The	following	is	a	brief	update	with	respect	to	
recent	developments	in	each	area:	
	
	
Foundation	Board		

• Developed	a	Board	Manual	for	the	orientation	of	new	Directors,	including	mission	of	the	College	
and	Foundation,	general	board	information,	financial	reports,	legal	information,	etc.	

• Revised	Director	roles	&	responsibilities	to	better	engage	Directors	and	set	expectations		
• Reviewed	and	revised	bylaws	to	improve	Board	governance,	increase	alumni	membership,	and	

provide	for	the	appointment	of	non-Director	experts,	alumni,	community	leaders	and	other	
individuals	to	Board	committees		

• Increased	number	of	alumni	on	the	Foundation	Board	to	over	40%	
• Developed	and	approved	an	Endowment	Funds	Policy	and	Accounting	Procedures	Policy	

	

Alumni	Relations	
• Developed	an	Awards	of	Distinction	Program	to	be	integrated	into	the	Scholarship	Reception	with	

the	first	ceremony	this	October.	The	purpose	of	this	program	is	to	identify	and	engage	alumni	and	
community	leaders	and	to	inspire	current	students	to	achieve	their	highest	levels	of	success	and	
become	active	alumni.	[Delegate	Kirk	Cox	will	receive	the	first	Distinguished	Alumni	Award.]	

• Mailed	“save-the-date”	cards	and		invitation	to	the	Classes	of	1966,	1976,	1986,	1996,	2006,	&	
2016	to	attend	the	College’s	first	Homecoming	at	the	First	Annual	Pecan	Festival	
	

Prospect	and	Fund	Development		
• Completed	the	final	phase	of	a	three-year	project	to	identify	RBC	alumni	and	launch	a	robust	donor	

management	system	(Raiser’s	Edge)	that	now	enables	communication	with	approximately	20,000	
alumni	and	friends	of	the	College		

• Sent	initial	introductory,	non-solicitation	letters	this	summer	to	10,000	new	alumni	entered	into	
the	database		

	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 22 of 25 

 

61



	
• Applied	for	two	grants	to	raise	funds	for	library	renovation	and	expansion	
• M&T	Bank	established	an	endowed	scholarship	
• Created	new	Annual	Fund	Giving	Levels:		

1960	Founders’	Society	 $10,000	+	
Statesman	Society	 $5,000	+	
President’s	Society	 $2,500	+	
Grove	Society	 $1,000	+	
Green	&	Gold	Society	 $500	+	
Friends	of	Richard	Bland	College	 $499	and	under	

	
	
Advancement	Operation/Staffing	

• Increased	Advancement	Staff	to	build	capacity	for	goal	attainment	with	two	new	professional	staff	
members:	Mary	Beth	Poma,	Director	of	Advancement,	and	Margaret	Kriso,	Assistant	Director	of	
Advancement	and	Fundraising,	joining	Stephen	Wilson,	Director	of	Alumni	Relations	and	Annual	
Fund	

	
		

	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 23 of 25 

 

62



	
	

CAMPUS	POLICE	
Jeffery	Brown,	Campus	Safety	&	Chief	of	Police	
	
	
Emergency	Management:	

• Appointment	of	new	emergency	management	team	(EMT)	as	required	by	Executive	Order	41	
o President	Sydow	appointed	a	new	emergency	management	team	in	compliance	with	the	

Governor’s	Executive	Order	(EO)	41,	that	includes	key	faculty	and	staff	members.	
• Completion	of	an	exercise	that	tested	the	College’s	response	to	an	emergency	incident	as	required	by	

the	Clery	Act.	
o EMT	members	were	engaged	in	a	facilitated	analysis	of	an	emergency	situation	(suicide	event)	

in	an	informal,	stress	free	environment.		The	discussion	allowed	members	to	examine	and	
resolve	problems	based	on	existing	operational	plans	and	enabled	members	to	identify	where	
those	plans	need	to	be	refined.	

o Tested	the	members	ability	to	function	in	a	NIMS	environment.	
• Revised	and	submitted	Continuity	Of	Operations	Plan	(COOP)	to	the	Virginia	Department	of	Emergency	

Management	as	required	by	EO	41.			
o Plan	was	reviewed	and	updated.	

• Implemented	an	enhanced	Material	Safety	Data	Sheet	(MSDS)	program.	
o In	an	effort	to	improve	compliance	with	the	Federal	Right	to	Know	Act,	the	College	purchased	a	

program	that	allows	the	posting	of	MSDS	sheets	on-line.	
	
Title	IX:	

• Appointment	of	new	Title	IX	Coordinator	
o President	Sydow	appointed	a	new	Title	IX	Coordinator	August	1,	2016	

• On-line	Title	IX	training	for	students,	faculty	and	staff	made	available	and	tracked	through	Canvass	
(Innovative	Educators)	

	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 24 of 25 

 

63



	
	

ATHLETICS	
Chuck	Moore,	Director	of	Athletics	and	Recreation	
	
	

• Spring	’16	Athletic	Director’s	Academic	Excellence	List	–		48%	of	all	Student	Athletes	achieved	this	
award.	In	recognition	of	their	accomplishment,	they	were	given	RBC	Book	bags.	
	

• Student	Athletes	advancing	their	athletic	careers	at	the	following	4	year	institutions:	VCU,	Concord	
University,	Shephard	University,	Christopher	Newport	University,	NC	Wesleyan,	Mary	Washington,	VA	
Wesleyan,	Glenville	State	University.		
	

• FY	’17	(Fall	’16)		
Returning	student	athletes	–	40%	of	overall	rosters		
International	student	athletes	–	13	
	

• Foundation	Golf	Tournament	had	more	participants	than	any	other	tournament	in	previous	years.	Final	
revenues	are	still	being	calculated.	
	

• In	the	process	of	implementing	an	Equestrian	Team	for	Fall	’17.	This	will	add	an	additional	15-20	
student	athletes	next	year.	Many	of	them	will	be	paying	to	board	their	horse.	

	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure A 

Page 25 of 25 

 

64









Context & Overview 
When the Board of Visitors approved RBC-19 in April of 2013, Richard 
Bland College of William & Mary (RBC) began researching data-driven 
solutions for student support services. In January, 2015, a model was 
identified that aligned with the newly stated vision of RBC: “Richard 
Bland College is in the vanguard of learning-outcomes based liberal arts 
education for university transfer and a model for testing and applying 
outcomes-driven solutions in higher education.” In April, 2015, with 
the financial support of the college Foundation, RBC entered into a 
partnership with IBM-Portal to launch the Exceptional Student Experience 
at Richard Bland College (ESE@RBC) in support of our bold vision of 
100% student success. The scope of the project was to build a predictive 
analytics tool that would alert the College when a student was at-risk. 
The outcome of the project was designed to increase student support 
for all students with a focus on at-risk populations to improve retention 
and graduation. To achieve the results we needed from the predictive 
model, we had to revisit our business processes and synchronize our 
limited resources around ensuring the right students were getting the 
right support. The result was a student centric, wrap-around support and 
advising model that uses data to achieve better student outcomes and 
improved engagement and retention.  

The IBM-Portal relationship brought much more than data to improve 
student success. It also brought contacts with colleges in the United 
Kingdom where a similar student-centric model had already been 
deployed. In November 2015, RBC’s President, Dr. Debbie Sydow, visited 
Brockenhurst College to learn how they used the Learner Mentor student 
model, along with predictive student data, to improve student outcomes. 
Connecting with Brockenhurst allowed us to reflect on what other gaps 
existed in our processes and what investments would be needed going 
forward. This process identified the need for an internal data warehouse 
so we can connect dispersed data from a variety of systems putting 
information about each student at our fingertips.  

After identifying the need for a data warehouse, RBC conducted a cost-
benefit analysis of outsourcing the creation of a data warehouse to IBM-
Portal or doing so internally. Because of the increased functionality gained 
by having an internal resource deployed to build a data warehouse as well 
as the agility garnered by maintaining the predictive model internally, RBC 
conducted a search for a Chief Innovation, Strategy, & Information Officer, 

and a Director of Institutional Research. 

Beginning Fall 2016 semester, RBC has deployed its own predictive 
model of the propensity to drop for incoming freshmen. This has yielded a 
70% accurate prediction. We are 25% complete on the initial construction 
of data warehouse, allowing us to put all the data from dispersed systems 
in the hands of the Learner Mentors in a timely manner. By Spring 2017, 
Learner Mentors will have one system to view, utilize, and record student 
data and interventions. Bringing these resources in-house has made it 
possible for us to effectively streamline business process and increase 
timeliness and accuracy of the data needed to improve student outcomes.

Program Description – ESE@RBC
Incoming students at RBC take a placement test to determine their skill 
level in mathematics and English. Guidance Practitioners administer 
a brief survey to determine students’ academic, transfer, and career 
goals. Students are then given pre-set schedules for their first semester, 
ensuring they are not taking classes that they do not need or that will not 
count toward their degree/transfer path. Next, students are paired with 
a Learner Mentor to serve as a single point of contact for that student 
from orientation to graduation (see attachment for Learner Mentor 
Biographies).

Once the Learner Mentors have a case load of students, they monitor 
multiple data sources to determine what types of interventions are 
necessary for that student.  The Learner Mentor knows their propensity 
to drop (with 70% accuracy), the number of risk factors, the student’s 
current academic performance, and the number and type of interventions 
the student has received to date. The graph below illustrates how the 
predictive model created a new variable using the total number of risk 
factors. There is a correlated relationship between the risk factor variable 
and the propensity to drop.  

Risk factors include:  
1. High School GPA < 3.0
2. Minority Student
3. Standard High School Diploma or GED
4. Male 
5. Non-Standard Admissions Type
6. Residential Student
7. From Outside the Metro Richmond Area

Exceptional Student Experience  
PHASE I Report 2015-16   

J. Tyler Hart, Dean of Enrollment Services

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure C 

Page 1 of 5 

68



Utilizing this data, we added the total number of risk factors to the Learner 
Mentor Dashboard giving the Learner Mentor access to data that helps 
them develop relationships and prescribe a one-size-fits-one intervention.

Based on this data, Learner Mentors develop a communications plan 
for each student based on the risk levels, focusing on relationships with 
students that have medium to high risk. Students with the lowest risk are 
contacted for traditional advising and support, while Learner Mentors are 
much more proactive for students with greater risk factors. In the pilot 
year, Learner Mentors intervened with students 1,102 times logging 7,428  
call notes.

Executive Summary
At the core of the ESE@RBC project is a focus of one-to-one education 
that streamlines academic pathways with individualized support to 
increase engagement and academic achievement among our students. 

The pilot year of this project has taught us many valuable lessons. Most 
importantly we have refined our business processes with a focus on data 
capture. The data has enabled us to focus resources in target areas. And 
this has paid off: we have increased our Fall-to-Fall retention by 5%.

Students also performed better academically with 75% more students 
achieving a 3.8 GPA or better and 30% more with a 3.25 GPA or better.

 
 
 

Next Steps
For the Fall 2017 semester, all students enrolled at RBC have been 
paired with a Learner Mentor. With the addition of four new, highly-
trained Learner Mentors and a newly renovated Student Success Center 
(serving as a one-stop student center), we will continue to focus on data 
collection in connection with programmatic investment. We wrote and 
received a grant to help pay for a summer math bridge program (piloted 
Summer 2016) for at-risk students. 93% of students advance to a higher 
level mathematics course, 86% moved directly to College Algebra. This 
program will be expanded in Summer 2017.

We are now 
applying for a more 
substantial SCHEV 
grant to expand this 
program to school 
districts that have 
been identified as 
high-risk through our 
predictive model. By 

using the data in the model to address several risk factors, we can assess 
what is working and what is not, based on the impact our efforts are 
having on retention over time.  

We are also piloting a First-Year Experience course this fall and will 
use the data from this course to expand the curriculum to the entire 
campus community in the Fall 2017. The long-term vision for this 
student success program encompasses the freshmen and sophomore 
years, where academic leaders will walk students through the college 
experience, from choosing a major and career field to picking a transfer 
school and program-to-program articulation path. Although the project 
has transformed in scope and shape, the outcomes remain consistent 
with advancing 100% student success. The RBC campus community 
has embraced the ESE@RBC brand and we are committed to refining 
processes for effective and efficient data gathering and continuous 
improvement. We achieved this outcome through well-defined 
assessment practices and nimble response times to workflow barriers 
using data.

100% Student Success

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure C 

Page 2 of 5 

69



Administrative Biographies

J. Tyler Hart
Education - M.B.A (Averett University
B.S. Business Administration (Longwood 
University)

• 8 years diversified experience in higher 
education including Strategic Planning, 
Strategic Initiatives, Financial Aid & Enrollment 
Management

• 5 years in public accounting & business experience
• Recruited largest freshmen class in RBC history
• Increased overall headcount by 40% in 2015

Kim Dupre
Education - Post Masters in Educational 
Leadership –  
Virginia Commonwealth University
Master of Science in Counseling & Human 
Services – Canisius College 
B.A. Psychology - Minor Zoology – State 
University of New  York at Oswego 

• 16 years in various public school districts in the field of school 
counseling 

• First School Counselor in the State of Virginia to achieve National Board 
Certification in School Counseling

• Teacher of the Year in Hanover County Public Schools 
• Intervention Specialist for Henrico County Public School Systems
• Director of on-line programming for Henrico County Public Schools

Kenneth LaTessa, Ph.D. 
Education – Ph.D. Organic Chemistry (University 
of Kansas)
B.S. Chemistry (Sam Houston State University)

• 15 years of diversified experience in database 
& software architecture, business intelligence, 
and management

• Chief Information Officer at the National 
 Research Center for College and University Admissions (NRCCUA)
• Director of Technology Services at Premier Studios
• Senior Development Manager at Westwood

• Chemistry Faculty at Sam Houston State University, Stephens College, 
University of Missouri and Johnson County Community College

Carol Kelejian
Education   – M.S. Adult Education (George Mason 
University)
 

• 20 year data professional in corporate and 
academic settings 

• Manager of Information Systems and 
Research at Central Fidelity Bank

    •  Data Analyst at Gateway Community and  

    •  GED Program Director

Learner Mentor Biographies

Name: Timara Jones
Education: M.S.Ed- Counseling (Old Dominion 
University);  
B.A.- Psychology (University of Virginia)

Thoughts on being a LM: As a Dinwiddie native 
and former Richard Bland student, it is great 
to come back home and see the amount of 
growth that has occurred. Being a part of a new 
adventure at the college, such as the learner 

mentor program, is both exciting and rewarding. We get a firsthand 
account of the students’ development and have the opportunity to make 
a difference. It is a blessing to be able to use the privileges that I have 
been given to serve the next generation. In general, it is good to be able 
to give back to society. It is even better to be able to give back to your 
own community. I am truly honored to be in such an impactful position. 

Name: Landry Mullins 
Education - Bachelor of Science in Administration 
of Justice from The University of Virginia’s 
College at Wise in 2014, where I also minored in 
Sociology. 

Thoughts on being a LM : I look forward to 
contributing to the intellectual development  
of students at Richard Bland College of William & 

Mary.

Biographies 

Technical College

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure C 

Page 3 of 5 

70



Name: Grant Heydenreich
Education: B.A. in Psychology at Shippensburg 
University
M.S. in Clinical Mental Health Counseling at 
Shippensburg University

Learner Mentor Role: As a Learner Mentor I have 
the opportunity to support a students’ academic 
and personal aspirations. Whether it be through 

career counseling, academic advising, or counseling services my role 
as a Learner Mentor provides students with the capability of becoming 
a well-rounded student. As a Learner Mentor I take a personal interest 
in my students’ lives and identify multiple ways to effectively support, 
challenge, and motivate students in the setting of higher education at 
Richard Bland College.

Name: Caitlin L. Chavers 
Education: University of Massachusetts Amherst 

Thoughts on being a LM ; Being a Learner 
Mentor for Richard Bland College has provided 
me with an incredible opportunity to work with 
students on a daily basis and provide them 
with the tools to navigate college life. I feel the 
relationship between Mentor and Mentee can 

truly make a difference in the success of each student. 

Name: Larry Belcher
Education: Graduate of Richard Bland College 
Graduate of Virginia Commonwealth University

Thoughts on being a LM:  Taking RBC to places 
where we have never been is more exciting than 
any task I have ever taken up.  

Presenting RBC to individuals who might believe 
college is out of reach is truly a gratifying calling.

I see this as creating a higher education power house with every small 
success. I am proud to be part of it!

Name: Winnie L. VanLandingham
Education: B.S. Community Services - University 
of Massachusetts, Amherst MA.
M.S Rehabilitation Counseling – Virginia 
Commonwealth University, Richmond VA

Thoughts on being a Learner Mentor: I have 
worked at Richard Bland College for the past 8 
years, 5 of which have been in the Admissions/

Enrollment/Advising department of the college (CSA – Center for Student 
Affairs they used to call it).  I continue to enjoy working with students and 
watching them grow personally and academically during their time here.  
Each student has a unique something about them and it is fun to be a 
helpful link in listening and guiding them to that next bigger step!  

Name: Cathryn Coffey 
Education: Virginia Tech with my Master’s degree 
in Higher Education and Student Affairs.  

Thoughts on being a Learner Mentor:  I really 
enjoy my role as a Learner Mentor because it is a 
very unique position that combines my top three 
interests: career advising, academic advising and 

student success.  This position really allows me to work with students 
from all angles and provide support for them to be successful. 

Name: Donald S. Payton
Deputy ADA Coordinator/Learner Mentor
Education: University of North Carolina at 
Charlotte, B.A.
Virginia State University, M.Ed.

Thoughts on being a Learner Mentor: Having the 
ability to assist the student with their challenge of 
deciding on a major, scheduling classes, assisting 

with day-to-day concerns and issues, and being a resource that they can 
rely on is a true 

Benefit for the students at RBC. I can only imagine if this model was 
available when I was an undergraduate student and how much different 
this would have made in my educational experience.

Name: James Tobias
Education: Bachelor Degree in German and 
History at the University of Michigan. I recently 
finished my Master’s Degree in Educational 
Leadership: Higher Education Student Affairs at 
Eastern Michigan University where I spent my 
time helping students navigate the difficulties of 
college as a success coach.   

Thoughts on being a Learner Mentor: I believe that the college experience 
is not just about earning a degree; it is more about taking control of 
your life, gaining valuable experiences, and building your network. I am 
passionate about helping students reach their full potential and learning 
where life can take them. Everyone’s experience in college is different 
and I am happy to help students make their journey as wonderful and 
successful as possible.

Learner Mentor:  Dr. Evanda S. 
Watts-Martinez
Education:  William & Mary Ph.D., Higher 
Education, Policy, Planning, and Leadership
Old Dominion University, Special Education –22 
Graduate Hours earned
Wesley Theological Seminary- Master of 
Theological Studies
Hampton University- Master of Counseling-

College Student Development

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure C 

Page 4 of 5 

71



Virginia Union University- Religion & Philosophy
 
Thoughts on being a Learner Mentor: Being a Learner Mentor has been 
a rewarding experience of building rich and trusting relationships with 
students.  The opportunity to use my knowledge and experiences to 
assist and guide learners in their progression toward degree and program 
completion is a benefit of mentoring in the RBC environment.  It has been 
fascinating, and simply an honor, to observe the various developmental 
phases of students who are on the path to self-discovery and who are 
enthusiastic about their futures.  I believe that I’ve fulfilled my purpose as 
a Learner Mentor at Richard Bland College when my students identify and 
realize their academic and personal goals.

Name: Alicia R. Pennix
Education: Bachelor of Social Work, Virginia 
Commonwealth University 
Master of Education in Adult and Higher 
Education, Mary Baldwin College (2017) 

Thoughts on being a Learner Mentor: I love being 
a Learner Mentor because I am able to interact 
one-on-one with students and assist him or her 

throughout their academic journey at Richard Bland College of William & 
Mary. With this position, I am awarded the opportunity to observe each 
student on my caseload grow personally, professionally, and academically. 
One of my favorite aspects of being a Learner Mentor is the ability to 
incorporate both of my degrees into my daily tasks that aligns with 
Richard Bland College of William & Mary exceptional student experience. 

Name:  Travis Luck
Education:  Bachelor of Arts in Psychology from 
Hampden-Sydney College, Master of Education 
in College Student Development and Counseling 
from Virginia Commonwealth University. 

Thoughts on Being a LM: Being a Learner Mentor 
is rewarding to me because many people say 
that college is the best time of your life without 

thinking of how hard it can sometimes be. While it is an awesome and 
amazing journey, there are also many bumps along the way. Learner 
Mentors, as well as the rest of the RBC campus community, are there 
to make those bumps less of an obstruction. I believe that a big part 
of education is continuing to work on yourself as a person not only 
academically but in all other areas of life. Developing the “whole student” 
is a big part of we as Learner Mentors aim to do. 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure C 

Page 5 of 5 

72



Communication & Marketing Report
Robin Deutsch – Assistant DirectorJoanne Williams – Director  

September, 2016

TV Campaigns 
(November, February, April) 
WWBT-12/WTVR-6
Per Campaign

Facebook 
Ads 

Impressions: 
3 million

Reach:
1.8 million 
Households
Target: 
Parents/Promote 
Brand

Impressions: 
2.3 million+   
Reach: 
620,600

Actions  
(clicks to 
website,  
video 
views):
 

125,000

Standard 
Conversion 
Rate: 
 

5% 

Conversion Rate for  
Richard Bland College 
of William & Mary:  

Total 
Budget: 
$8,825

24.4%

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

-

Applied
2013   2014   2015  2016 

13.42% Increase 
in Applications

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure D 

Page 1 of 2 

73



 

prestigious Degree: A branch of 
William & Mary, one of the oldest and most 

prestigious colleges in the country.

 No Big Debt: When you transfer to a partner 
 university you won’t carry big college debt that will 
hang over your future.

 exceptional Education: Our professors 
 are ranked among the best in the region. The 
Exceptional Student Experience (ESE@RBC) program 
provides each student a Learner Mentor and a 
customized, 24/7 academic support system to advance 
100% student success. 

 Seamless Transfer: Transfer with a 3.25
  average to William & Mary or take advantage of
RBC’s Guaranteed Transfer Agreements with the top 
public and private universities in Virginia.

 Lifelong Memories: Live on-campus, 
 join clubs and compete on intercollegiate athletic 
championship teams. Experience RBC’s 825-acre scenic  
campus, with a new Equine Center, just south of 
downtown Richmond. 

1
2
3

4

5
5  Fantastic reasons to apply now:

RBC.EDU

LAYNE SINGLETARY
Richard Bland College  
of William & Mary, ’18
Academic Goal: VCU ‘20
Career Goal: Nursing

Create Your Journey

Bring your best friend to college

Join RBC’s  
new Equine &  
Equestrian 
Programs

Earn a Big-Brand Degree with NO Big DEBT

RM_AD_7x10—V1.indd   1 8/15/16   8:51 AM

Website

RBC.EDu

BRING YOUR BEST

FRIEND 
TO COLLEGE

Join the new Equine & Equestrian Programs  
at Richard Bland College of William & Mary  
this Fall for a Life-Changing Experience.
Info: Dr. Barbara Morgan     Bmorgan@rbc.edu

Print ads 

Success  Newsletter 
Newsworthy
Statesman  Scholars

Sessions:  
Up 37.74%
New Visitors: 

Up 5%
Bounce Rate: 
Down 5%

(new website launched on March 15, 2016)

Social Media
% of Facebook  
Likes up 20%
% of Instagram  
Followers up 50%
% of Twitter  
Followers up 24%

Earned Media 
$1,571,510

Important Dates
August 17  Athletics Department Kickoff: 5pm - 6:30pm (Statesman Hall)
August 18  Emerging Leaders Forum: 2:45pm - 3:30pm (SSHE)
August 19  Instagram Challenge: 11:30am - 1:30pm (Statesman Cafe)

August 20    Stoplight Dance: 8pm - 11pm (Statesman Cafe)
August 21  Taste of Petersburg: 11:30am - 3pm (Residential Lot)
August 25 	 Men’s	Soccer	vs.	Wake	Tech:	4pm-	6pm	(Statesman	Field)

Tabby Dabney,
Honors Student, RA
and Member of the
RBC Softball Team

What does it mean to be an 
Honors Student?  I know that being 
an Honors Student has put me in a 
position to continue my education at 
a quality instituion after I graduate, 
which will lead me to a great job and 
a successful life.

How does it feel to represent your 
peers? It’s an amazing feeling. I like 

having a voice that can help students. Throughout high school and college 
I’ve always embraced having a leadership role. I’ve gone through challenges 
and obstacles in my life and it’s made me a stronger person. I like knowing 
that I can use my experiences to help my classmates become successful in 
all facets of their life.

What does it take to be an Honors Student? It takes a lot of dedication, 
hard work, time management and the willpower to succeed.

Meet #teamrbc Dr. Debbie L. Sydow,
President Around Campus: TABBY DABNEY

Pecan	Grove 
Richard	Bland	College	of	William	&	Mary	is	home
to	Virginia’s	largest	and	oldest	pecan	grove.	The	pecan	
will be celebrated on campus with the inaugural Pecan 
Festival	on	Oct.	29	from	10am	to	5pm.	

Success100% Student

E x c e p t i o n a l  S t u d e n t  E x p e r i e n c e  a t  R i c h a r d  B l a n d  C o l l e g e  o f  W i l l i a m  &  M a r y  A u g u s t  1 7 ,  2 0 1 6

Stay Connected!
@RBCStatesmen
@RBCStatesmen
www.facebook.com/
RichardBlandCollege

Outstanding	Faculty 
Dr.	Matt	Smith,	Associate	
Professor of Mathematics 

Welcome to the start of what I know 
will be an exciting year at Richard 
Bland College of William & Mary. 
The Class of 2018 is one of the 
largest in college history.  
As part of RBC’s committment to 
100% Student Success, we are 
delighted that six new full time 
faculty members and six new learner 
mentors have joined the College 
to further advance the Exceptional 
Student Experience (ESE@RBC).

President Sydow recently appeared on WTVR’s 
Virginia This Morning, where she offered tips 
for student success. Download a free QR Code 
Scanner from your respective cell phone App 
Store to access the complete interview. 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure D 

Page 2 of 2 

74



 

 

 

 

Residential	and	Student	Life	

2015-2016	

Review	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Corey	L.	Scott,	Ed.D.	

Associate	Dean,	Residential	&	Student	Life	 	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure E 

Page 1 of 3 

75



Kuk	and	Banning	(2009)	wrote	that	“student	affairs	organizations	have	become	complex	entities	
and	serve	as	a	critical	link	to	student	success	and	the	quality	of	the	overall	educational	experience	
in	collegiate	institutions”	(p.	94).		Black	(2007)	went	on	to	indicate	that	social	environments	will	
be	 looked	 at	 as	 a	mechanism	 for	 reinforcing	 academic	 achievement	 through	 a	 focus	 on	 co-
curricular	programming.		The	way	forward	to	continue	the	good	work	of	the	RBC	Strategic	Plan	
(RBC19)	 is	 to	match	 the	 student	 experience	with	 the	 student	 expectation	 through	 a	 robust,	
compressive	student	life	division	to	assist	in	student	retention	and	development.			
	
With	this	in	mind	Residential	&	Student	Life	set	out	to	reinforce	academic	excellence	with	a	focus	
on	developing	the	holistic	student.			
	

Office	of	Residence	Life	(ORL)	
Residence	Life	saw	a	tremendous	amount	of	new	initiatives	and	processes.		We	worked	to	create	
Standard	Operating	Procedures,	which	govern	staff	response	to	35	different	campus	incidences.	
We	updated	job	descriptions	and	reassigned	professional	responsibilities	to	make	better	use	of	
talents	and	 to	 improve	customer	 service.	 	 	ORL	 staff	was	engaged	 in	crises	management	and	
incident	 response.	 	 Additionally,	 all	 ORL	 staff	 members	 became	 CSA	 certified	 through	 the	
department	of	campus	police.		Resident	Assistants	and	Residence	Life	Coordinators	facilitated	10	
programs/activities	for	student	enjoyment	and	development.		ORL	saw	over	and	80%	reduction	
in	residential	student	violations	from	January	2016	to	May	2016.		This	was	partly	attributed	to	a	
focus	on	preemptive	programming,	increased	use	of	counseling	techniques,	and	new	training	for	
professional	and	para-professional	staff.	In	collaboration	with	campus	police	ORL	implemented	
24-hour	front	desk	monitoring.			
	

ORL	Staff	Development	–	Richmond,	Virginia	

	
Student	Conduct	Board	

We	reconfigured	the	student	conduct	board	to	align	with	the	standards	of	the	student	handbook.		
We	 collaborated	 with	 the	 office	 of	 residence	 life	 on	 preemptive	 programming	 to	 reduce	
infractions	of	 college	policies.	 	We	 strengthened	 communication	with	 campus	police	 through	
weekly	email	updates.	

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure E 

Page 2 of 3 

76



Student	Activities	&	Leadership	
We	 engaged	 in	 over	 18	 collaborative	 workshops	 with	 the	 academic	 units.	 We	 provided	 7	
community	 engagement	 activities	 in	 the	 campus	 community.	 	 	 The	 student	 assembly	 was	
reconstituted	with	the	help	and	input	of	students.		We	showcased	over	30	transfer	events	for	our	
students.			
	

Paint	Night	Event	–	Presented	by	Isiah	Lucas	(Resident	Assistant)	

	
In	an	effort	to	improve	on	the	successes	of	2015-2016	and	to	increase	student	development,	
we	engaged	in	the	creation	of	a	comprehensive	strategic	plan	with	three	focus	areas.	
	

Focus	1:	Client	Service.	 	 Engage	 in	activities	 that	enhance	the	client	experience,	while	
fostering	 long	 term	 relationships	 and	 using	 data	 &	 training	 to	 make	 strategic	
enhancements	to	that	experience.	
	
Focus	 2:	 Transformative	 Learning.	 	 Offer	 a	 comprehensive	 data	 focused	 approach	 to	
programs/activities	 geared	 toward:	 life	 skills	 development,	 academic	
readiness/excellence,	and	college	transfer.	Engage	families	as	important	stakeholders	to	
retention.	
	
Focus	 3:	 Fiscal	 Stability.	 	 Improve	 the	 fiscal	&	 facility	management	within	 the	 division	
through	grant	writing,	the	development	of	projected	spending	budgets,	a	thorough	review	
of	the	budget	allocation	process,	bed	space	innovation,	annual	targeted	improvements	to	
student	facilities,	and	an	energy	conservation	program.		

	
We	are	looking	forward	to	a	successful	2016-2017	that	places	student	development	at	the	
center	of	what	we	do.		

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

Enclosure E 

Page 3 of 3 

77



















 

 

 

  

RBC OFFICE OF STUDENT 
ACTIVITIES AND LEADERSHIP 
ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2016 

[You can add an abstract or other key statement here. An abstract 
is typically a short summary of the document content.] 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 3 of 16 

 

86



Program Summary 

OFFICE MISSION 

The Richard Bland College of William and Mary Office of Student Activities and Leadership collaborates with 

campus and community partners to enhance student learning and satisfaction. We seek to prepare students 

to take responsibility for their transfer, career, and lifestyle goals so that together we may provide a diversity 

of opportunities for emotional, social, spiritual, and cultural enrichment. 

CORE PROGRAMMING VALUES 

1. Expanding Capacity through Collaboration 

2. Enhancing Learning through Exploration 

3. Fostering Growth through Responsibility 

4. Promoting Community through Diversity 

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 

 Number of events recorded: 102 

 Number of attendees recorded: 5,043 

 Number of field trips: 10 

 Number of community service and philanthropy activities: 7 

 $520 donated to local non-profits: Toys for Tots and the James House 

 305 pounds of food donated to the Colonial Heights Food Pantry 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 4 of 16 

 

87



Expanding Capacity through Collaboration 

We are incredibly thankful to all on-campus and off-campus partners who collaborated with our office to 

facilitate valuable experiences and programming for our students. 

 

FACULTY/STAFF COLLABORATION 

• Jay Ipson, Holocaust Speaker, invited by Jamie Camp 

• The Balance and Breath Bash, organized by Jena Morrison 

• History field trip to Williamsburg, led by David McCarthy and Cathryn Coffey 

• NekocCon conference field trip and film festival, led by Dan Zelinski 

• Alumni Forum and Capital One Seminar, organized by Mike Lehman 

• The Black and White Affair, organized by Alicia Pennix 

• Dia de los Muertos sugar skulls display and celebration, organized by Rachel Finney 

• Many trips to Richmond First Fridays, Petersburg Friday for the Arts, led by Michelle Delano 

• Sports events and collaborative activities led by Danish Saadat 

• Library “Mid-Month Munchies” events sponsored by Carly Winfield and Irene Handy 

• Valentine’s Day dinner, Sports Cafe , and other cafe  events, hosted by Cain Bassett 

• The Color Run and Ford 5K and other running club field trips, led by Landry Mullins 

• The Logistics Career field trip, organized by Larry Belcher and co-chaperoned by Stephen Wilson 

• EAGALA Conference Field Trip, led by Barbara Morgan 

• Selma Movie showing and conversation facilitated by Evanda Watts-Martinez 

• Mike Lee, guest speaker invited by Tiffany Birdsong 

• John Coski, speaker, and Girl Rising viewing and discussion events hosted by Adam Zucconi 

• Wellness and student success events hosted by the Learner Mentor team 

Staff chaperones serving food at the fall “Finals Week Midnight Study Breakfast” 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 5 of 16 

 

88



OFF-CAMPUS COLLABORATION 

 Mad City Money and one financial literacy workshop hosted by Fort Lee Credit Union 

 Four Storytelling/diversity events, hosted by “I am my life” and Chaz Barracks 

 Two Blood Drives, hosted by Virginia Blood Services 

 Read Across America event, hosted by Walnut Hill Elementary School 

 Annual Christmas Tree decoration, hosted by Petersburg Area Art League (PAAL) 

 Free meeting space made possible by The Cameron Foundation 

 Holiday Illumination, hosted by the Petersburg Department of Cultural Affairs, Arts and Tourism 

 

 

 

Sugar skulls made by students presented at the 

annual Dí a de Los Muertos celebration. 

David McCarthy leads a tour of students in 

historic Williamsburg. 

Students participating in the “Zombie Run” 

hosted by the RBC Running Club. 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 6 of 16 

 

89



Enhancing Learning and Satisfaction 

We work to ensure that all student activities are both memorable and meaningful. Often, even events that 

seem “just for fun” have the underlying goals of fostering friendships and creating a positive sense of 

community. Additionally, many events this year enhanced our students’ classroom education with rich 

experiences that prove to our students that learning is important, relevant, and best when shared. 

SPEAKERS AND SPECIAL GUESTS 

• John Coski, author of The Confederate Battle Flag and historian at the American Civil War Museum 

• Mike Lee, motivational and inspirational speaker 

• Michelle Peace, Associate Chairperson of the Department of Forensic Science 

• Jay Ipson, Co-founder and former executive director of the Virginia Holocaust Museum 

• Chaz Barracks, founder of “I am my life” and local diversity leader 

EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES 

• History field trip to Colonial Williamsburg 

• Logistics Field Trip to the Port of Virginia, Virginia Wesleyan University, and CMA-CGM (America) LLC 

• EAGALA Conference presentation 

• Stream Ecosystem research trip to West Virginia 

CAMPUS-WIDE EVENTS 

• Homecoming Bonfire 

• Black and White Affair, semi-formal dance 

• Halloween Costume Party 

• Night Before Christmas Holiday Dance 

• Balance & Breathe Bash 

• Welcome Back Bash after the Black Out Basketball Game 

• Bubble Soccer activity 

• VSU Gospel Choral concert for Black History Month 

• Big Bland Bash at the Equine Center, hosted by the Student Assembly 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 7 of 16 

 

90



 

Over 80 students participated in the first ever “bubble soccer” event 

hosted in Statesman Gym in January. 

Students in Eric Miller’s Stream 

Ecology summer course enjoyed a 

week of hands-on research in West 

Virginia. 

Students in the RBC Running Club participated in the annual 

Richmond Color Run in September. 

Over 200 students attended the “Night 

Before Christmas” holiday party. 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 8 of 16 

 

91



Fostering Growth through Responsibility 

Leadership and responsibility are at the core of student development. Through these programs we seek to 

both empower students to take charge of their experience at college and their potential after they leave RBC. 

STUDENT ASSEMBLY 

The purpose of Student Assembly is to serve as a representative body and liaison to the RBC administration.  

1. Student Assembly elections were held online for the first time using Canvas 

2. Student Assembly officers attended the annual Virginia 21 Late Night and Lobby Day event 

3. Student Assembly officers attended the annual Active Citizens Conference at William & Mary 

4. The Student Assembly hosted the inaugural “Big Bland Bash” spring celebration 

5. Student Assembly officer Amber Ange attended the Virginia 21 Summer Leadership Institute 

STUDENT ORGANIZATIONS 

Students Organizations are the foundation of higher education programming because they empower students 

to organize themselves around shared interests and enables students to plan events and activities. 

New Student Organizations formed in 2015-16 

1. Fashion Club 

2. RBC Art Learning Community 

3. RBC Gives Service Club 

4. RBC Music Club 

5. RBC Runners 

Continuing Student Organizations 

1. Anime Club 

2. Business and Economics Club 

3. Film Club 

4. Ignite Campus Ministry 

5. PTK Honors Society 

Developing Student Organizations 

1. Debate Club 

2. LGBT+ 

3. RBC History Society 

4. Young Democrats 

5. Young Republicans 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 9 of 16 

 

92



MILITARY MONDAYS AND TRANSFER TUESDAYS 

Military Mondays and Transfer Tuesdays are events on campus where recruiters are invited to promote 

opportunities at their respective institutions. We contact all transfer partners and military branches to 

participate and promote these events to students and encourage them to explore all their options. 

Six Military Monday events 

- Education and Career Opportunities in the United States Army (2) 

- Education and Career Opportunities in the United States Marine Corps (2) 

- Education and Career Opportunities in the United States Navy (2) 

31 Transfer Tuesday events 

- Christopher Newport University 

- Hampton University 

- Radford University 

- Virginia Commonwealth University 

- The College of William & Mary 

- Regent University 

- Virginia Wesleyan College 

- Old Dominion University 

- Old Dominion University Online 

- Norfolk State University 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 10 of 16 

 

93



 

 

 

Members of Alpha Phi Omega Service Fraternity and Student Assembly 

officers with William & Mary Board of Visitors member, Karen Kennedy 

Shultz, at the annual Active Citizens Conference at William & Mary. 

Over 150 students attend the inaugural Big Bland Bash, hosted 

and planned by the Student Assembly. 

Members of the LGBT+ student 

organization planned a field trip to PRIDE 

FEST in Richmond. 

Over 60 students attend Paint Out Your 

Stress, an event coordinated by Isaiah 

Lucas, an RA in the residence halls. 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 11 of 16 

 

94



Promoting a Welcoming and Vibrant Community 

Student activities promote a welcoming and vibrant community by celebrating diversity, building a 

community of understanding, and honoring the traditions and culture that our students find relevant.  

I AM MY LIFE STORYTELLING EVENTS 

An important component of the “Welcoming and Vibrant Community” goal, “I am my life” is an organization 

that partnered with Richard Bland on a total of five activities in the 2015-16 calendar year. Led by Chaz 

Barracks, “I am my life” is a local organization working to promote inclusive communities through storytelling. 

- Richmond PRIDEFEST field trip, Chaz Barracks shared his personal story with attendees 

- Fall storytelling event on November 12, 2015 

- Black History Month storytelling event on February 25, 2016 

- RBC students painted a mural at Lift Coffee Shop (below) during First Fridays on April 1, 2016 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 12 of 16 

 

95



BLACK HISTORY MONTH EVENTS SERIES 

- VSU Gospel Chorale performance 

- Selma movie viewing and follow-up discussion 

- “Celebrating Jazz” Mid-Month Munchies event in the Library 

- “I am my life” storytelling event 

- Spring blood drive in honor of Dr. Charles Drew, pioneering African American scientist 

- Prince George High School SAAD and Cultural Awareness Club performance 

WOMENS HISTORY MONTH EVENTS SERIES 

- “Girl Rising” documentary viewing and discussion 

- “Thank the Women in your Life”  Mid-Month Munchies event in the Library 

- PBS Maker’s documentary series highlighting women in comedy, Hollywood, space, war, and more 

CIVIC ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

 Fall and spring blood donation events hosted by Virginia Blood Services 

 Food drive: 305 pounds of food donated to the Colonial Heights Food Pantry 

 Four voter registration days hosted by the New Virginia Majority 

 Honors students led a caroling service activity at Ivy House 

 Ignite Campus Ministries led an event at Brighter Living Assisted Living Facility in Colonial Heights 

 Students and staff attended the Petersburg Grand Illumination in downtown Petersburg 

 Students and staff participated in the Read Across America event at Walnut Hill Elementary School 

 Staff and Students raised awareness and donated $311 to the James House for Denim Day 

 Student Destini Brodi hosted a fundraiser bake sale to support the organization Girl Rising 

 Honors student Kenedi Cruz participated in a gleaning event sponsored by the Society of St. Andrew 

Students and staff at Read Across America pictured 

with Principal Belinda Urquhart, an RBC Alum. 

 

Poster created by student Destini Brodi to promote 

“Women’s Appreciation Day” and Girl Rising viewing. 

 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 13 of 16 

 

96



 

 

Student Kenedi Cruz gleaning the 

Society of St. Andrew at the ECO 

farm near campus. 

 

RBC staff and students gathered during the annual Denim Day event. 

 

The VSU Gospel Chorale brought an interactive “history of gospel” 

presentation and the first major musical performance in the renovated 

SSHE Auditorium during Black History Month. 

 

RBC student, Carrington Brown, 

painting the “I am my life” mural at 

the Richmond First Fridays event. 

 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 14 of 16 

 

97



Office of Student Activities and Leadership SWOC 

Over the course of the past year, we have identified the following strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and 

challenges related to promoting student activities and leadership at Richard Bland College. 

STRENGTHS 

- Student leaders are motivated to lead activities, organize fundraisers, and other programming. 

- Faculty and staff are enthusiastic partners as event chaperones, student organization sponsors, and 

more. 

- Community organizations such as VSU and Walnut Hill have emerged as willing partners and 

collaborators. 

- Cultural and historical awareness events have become a celebrated aspect of campus life at RBC. 

WEAKNESSES 

- The high turnover of students can hinder leadership retention and student organization continuity. 

- Finding more effective methods of engaging commuter students in all areas of campus life. 

- There is a need for more voter registration opportunities and programs/groups related to political 

issues. 

OPPORTUNITIES 

- Students have shown a great interest in civic engagement opportunities at local community partners. 

- Student leaders could greatly benefit from more frequent leadership development and guest speakers. 

- Social events on the weekends would improve campus life and student satisfaction. 

- The rise of various social media platforms such as Snapchat could be a new communications tool. 

CHALLENGES 

- The popularity and accessibility of all sorts of media are possibly keeping students home and inside. 

- Student employment and responsibilities at home may be leaving less time for enrichment activities. 

- Pervading culture of prejudice sometimes prevents students from valuing and celebrating diversity. 

- Some students are not matriculating with basic socio-emotional, psychological, and cognitive skills. 

LOOKING AHEAD 

In the next year, the Office of Student Engagement plans to implement a more robust program of civic 

engagement, leadership development, and academic enrichment in addition to existing social events and 

campus traditions. In addition, our office is planning several collaborations with Virginia State University in 

order to amplify our resources, events, and enrichment opportunities. 

 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 15 of 16 

 

98



Thank you! 

Thank you to all our campus partners for your help making RBC a more exciting, inclusive, and uplifting 

institution for our students and staff. We truly have found that collaboration is the key to success and look 

forward to working more with each of you in the coming year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

 

Michael Rogers 

Assistant Director of Student Activities and Leadership 

Richard Bland College of William & Mary 

11301 Johnson Road 

South Prince George, VA 23805 

804-862-6100 Ext. 6775 

 

 

 

Board of Visitors 

September 21-23, 2016 

 

Enclosure G 

Page 16 of 16 

 

99



















































































































Board of Visitors  Resolution    9  

 

September 21-23, 2016  Page   3  of   3  

 

 
 

 

124







































































































Investment Portfolio Evaluation For
Periods Ending June 30, 2016:

Board of Visitors Endowment

Wells Fargo Advisors is the trade name under which Wells Fargo & Company provides brokerage services through two registered broker/dealers: Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC, member 
NYSE/SIPC, and Wells Fargo & Company Financial Network, Inc., member NASD/SIPC.  Each broker/dealer is a separate non-bank affiliate of Wells Fargo &  Company.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Contents 

I. Executive Summary

II. Equity Sector Review

III. Fixed Income Sector Review

IV. Green Fund Update

ENCLOSURE K



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 2

Consultant Team

Name Phone E-mail

Joseph W. Montgomery, CFP®, AIF® Phone:  (757) 220-1782 joe.montgomery@wellsfargoadvisors.com

Managing Director - Investments Mobile: (757) 570-4545

Thomas C. Wilson III, AIF® Phone:  (804) 559-2922 tc.wilson@wellsfargoadvisors.com

Managing Director - Investments Mobile: (804) 244-1213

Institutional Consulting Director

R. Bryce Lee, CFA, CIMA®, CAIA, FRM, AIF® Phone:  (757) 258-1687 bryce.lee@wellsfargoadvisors.com

Senior Institutional Consultant Mobile: (757) 753-5001

Institutional Consulting Services

Robin S. Wilcox, AIF® Phone:  (757) 258-5980 robin.wilcox@wellsfargoadvisors.com

Vice President - Investments Mobile: (757) 753-5057

Brian T. Moore, CIMA®, AIF® Phone:  (757) 258-1666 brian.t.moore@wellsfargoadvisors.com

Financial Consultant Mobile: (757) 753-4875

Institutional Consulting Analyst

Karen A. Hawkridge, CIMA®, AIF® Phone: (757) 258-1673 karen.hawkridge@wellsfargoadvisors.com

Financial Consultant Mobile: (804) 852-3549

Institutional Consulting Analyst

H. James Johnson, III Phone: (757) 258-1671 james.johnson3@wellsfargoadvisors.com

Financial Consultant Mobile: (757) 634-2021

The Optimal Service Group

428 McLaws Circle

Williamsburg, VA 23185

Toll Free: 1-888-465-8422

Fax: 1-757-564-3026



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 3

Data Sources:  Zephyr StyleAdvisor &  Barclay’s Capital

Capital Markets Review
For Periods Ending June 30, 2016

Economy/Capital Markets: The second quarter delivered reasonable returns across a

variety of asset classes reversing much of the damage done in the first six weeks of the

year. Markets shifted to expecting an even softer monetary stance amid global weakness,

as expectations for additional Fed tightening were eliminated. The late-June U.K. vote to

leave the European Union unleashed more political and economic uncertainty on the

markets, leading to a rise in volatility and a further drop in bond yields. An expectation

of even easier monetary postures by the world’s central banks added fuel to the global

sovereign-bond rally and pushed trillions of dollars of government bonds into negative-

yield territory. A gradually steadying global economy helped beaten-down commodities

bounce back during 2Q16, and most assets posted decent gains for the first half of

2016. The strong dollar was once again a headwind for equity returns in most foreign

markets for U.S.-based investors. On the political front, Congress created a federal

oversight board with authority to negotiate the restructuring of Puerto Rico’s $70 billion

in debt. The U.S. territory authorized the suspension of payments on its general

obligation debt just before it was due to make payments totaling $1.9 billion on July 1.

For the quarter, the S&P 500 posted a 2.46% total return. The U.S. was once again the

preferred market for global investors. International stocks as measured by the MSCI

EAFE and the MSCI Emerging Market lagged the U.S. while returning -1.46% and

0.66% respectively. Japan (-8%) was among the worst returning developed equity

markets in the second quarter, sinking amid a strengthening yen and a sluggish

economy. The quarter was characterized by a flight to safety as investors shifted into

defensive sectors and safe-haven investments. The telecommunication services and

utilities sectors rose 7%, while consumer staples gained 5%. Information technology and

consumer discretionary were the only sectors to post declines, losing 4% and 1%,

respectively. Energy (+19%) was the strongest sector in 2Q16, rebounding amid a rally

in oil prices. Commodities and commodity-producer equities continued their rallies in

2Q16.

Bonds posted positive returns for the second quarter in a row, as interest rates fell and

credit spreads tightened. The 10-year U.S. Treasury yielded 1.78% to start the quarter

and 1.49% at quarter’s end. Long-duration and lower-credit-quality categories led, with

some categories registering double-digit returns year to date. The low-rate environment

continues to support corporate balance sheets as debt-servicing costs remain low relative

to cash-flow receipts. High-yield bonds have benefited from higher oil prices and more

favorable liquidity conditions. In the muni market, technical and fundamental factors

continued to show strength, as the supply of new issuance remains below demand and

tax revenue growth remains broad based. Overseas, the yield on Germany’s benchmark

10-year note moved into negative territory for the first time in history, ending the

quarter at -0.13%. Following the Brexit vote, Standard & Poor’s revoked the U.K.’s

AAA credit rating, citing the resulting political and economic uncertainty. S&P

downgraded its assessment of the country’s creditworthiness by two notches to AA.

Index Name 2Q16

Fiscal 

YTD 1 year 3 years 5 years 10 years

Dow Jones Industrial Average 2.1 4.5 4.5 9.0 10.4 7.7
S&P 500 2.5 4.0 4.0 11.7 12.1 7.4
Russell 1000 Value 4.6 2.9 2.9 9.9 11.4 6.1
Russell 1000 Growth 0.6 3.0 3.0 13.1 12.4 8.8
Russell Midcap 3.2 0.6 0.6 10.8 10.9 8.1
Russell Midcap Value 4.8 3.3 3.3 11.0 11.7 7.8
Russell Midcap Growth 1.6 (2.1) (2.1) 10.5 10.0 8.1
Russell 2000 3.8 (6.7) (6.7) 7.1 8.4 6.2
Russell 2000 Value 4.3 (2.6) (2.6) 6.4 8.2 5.2
Russell 2000 Growth 3.2 (10.8) (10.8) 7.7 8.5 7.1
Russell 3000 2.6 2.1 2.1 11.1 11.6 7.4

MSCI EAFE Index (1.2) (9.7) (9.7) 2.5 2.2 2.1
MSCI World Index 1.2 (2.2) (2.2) 7.5 7.2 5.0
MSCI EM (EMERGING MARKETS) 0.8 (11.7) (11.7) (1.2) (3.4) 3.9
MSCI FM (FRONTIER MARKETS) 0.6 (11.7) (11.7) 1.4 1.8 0.5
MSCI World Ex. US Index (0.8) (9.4) (9.4) 2.4 1.7 2.1
MSCI ACWI 1.2 (3.2) (3.2) 6.6 6.0 4.8
MSCI ACWI ex USA (0.4) (9.8) (9.8) 1.6 0.6 2.3

Barclays U.S. Aggregate 2.2 6.0 6.0 4.1 3.8 5.1
Barclays U.S. Government/Credit 2.7 6.7 6.7 4.2 4.1 5.2
Barclays Intermediate U.S. Government/Credit 1.6 4.3 4.3 3.0 2.9 4.5
Barclays Municipal Bond 2.6 7.7 7.7 5.6 5.3 5.1
BofA Merrill Lynch Convertible Securities 4.0 (5.0) (5.0) 7.1 7.2 6.8
BofA Merrill Lynch High Yield Master 5.8 1.7 1.7 4.2 5.7 7.4
Citigroup World Government Bond Index 3.4 11.3 11.3 2.7 1.2 4.2
JPM EMBI Global Diversified 5.0 9.8 9.8 7.2 6.5 8.0
Citigroup 3-month T-bill 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 1.0

Dow UBS Commodity Index 12.8 (13.3) (13.3) (10.6) (10.8) (5.6)
FTSE Nareit All REITs 7.4 22.7 22.7 13.1 12.3 7.0
MSCI World Ex. US Index (0.8) (9.4) (9.4) 2.4 1.7 2.1

*All returns longer than one year are annualized

* * *



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 4

Executive Summary
Total Fund Performance Through June 30, 2016

1 Annualized

2 From 11/1/09, 25% S&P 500, 12% Russ Midcap, 7% Russ 2000, 9% MSCI EAFE, 2% MSCI Emerging Mkts Free, 30% Barclays US Aggregate, 5% Citi World Government Bond, 5% JPM EMBI Global Diversified,
5% HFRI Index; From 1/1/03, 40% S&P 500, 12.5% Russ Midcap, 7.5% Russ 2000, 10% MSCI EAFE, 4% MSCI Emerging Mkts Free, 20% Barclays US Aggregate, 2.5% Citi World Government Bond, 2.5% JPM
EMBI+; Prior to 1/1/03, 60% Russell 3000, 15% MSCI World Ex-US, 25% Barclays Aggregate

3 From 3/1/12, 44% Russell 3000, 35% Barclays US Aggregate, 11% MSCI World ex US, 10% HFRI; From 1/1/10, 44% Russell 3000, 40% Barclays US Aggregate, 11% MSCI World ex US, 5% HFRI; From 1/1/96
60% Russell 3000, 25% Barclays US Aggregate, 15% MSCI World Ex US

+ Quarterly performance results prior to the third quarter of 2002, were provided by Delaware Investments Advisors and Lazard Asset Management. There were no calculations by Wells Fargo Advisors to ensure the
accuracy of the results. Based on information provided by SunTrust, Wells Fargo Advisors began calculating quarterly results starting in the 4th quarter of 2002. There is no guarantee as to the accuracy of our
calculations for the managers or the Total BOV Account.

Performance is net of investment management fees

% of 

Account  $ Value 2q16 FYTD

One 

Year

Three 

Years1
Five   

Years1
Seven 

Years1
Ten 

Years1
Changes 

(1/1/03)

Incept 

(Mgr)

Incept 

Bench

July-Aug 

'16
100% 74,602,228$ Total BOV Account 2.3 (2.1) (2.1) 4.8 4.9 9.0 4.8 7.4 6.8 7.0 3.5

Target Benchmark 2 2.3 1.6 1.6 6.8 6.8 9.9 5.6 7.8  2.5

Policy Benchmark 3 2.0 1.6 1.6 6.9 7.1 10.0 5.5 7.4

7.6% 5,670,675$   Blackrock: Large Cap Value 1.4 (2.3) (2.3) 9.0 8.4 12.2 -- -- 4.8 6.0 4.2
Russell 1000 Value 4.6 2.9 2.9 9.9 11.4 14.5 -- -- 3.7

7.1% 5,332,986$   Goldman Sachs (2.1) (7.3) (7.3) 7.4 -- -- -- -- 6.5 11.4 4.1
S&P 500 2.5 4.0 4.0 11.7 -- -- -- --  3.8

6.1% 4,519,914$    iShares Russell Mid-Cap Growth ETF 1.5 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 1.6 1.8 4.6
Russell MidCap Growth 1.6 -- -- -- -- - -- --  4.6

6.7% 4,968,447$   Artisan Mid Cap Value 3.3 (1.4) (1.4) 5.1 7.9 -- -- -- 15.5 20.0 3.4
Russell MidCap Value 4.8 3.3 3.3 11.0 11.7 -- -- --  4.0

7.0% 5,249,403$   Dreyfus Small Cap Index 3.2 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 8.7 6.2 6.4
Russell 2000 3.8 -- -- -- -- -- -- 10.0 7.8
 

6.2% 4,635,967$   Dodge & Cox International (1.2) (18.9) (18.9) 0.4 -- -- -- -- 5.9 6.4 10.1
7.5% 5,619,001$    MFS International 2.2 5.6 5.6 -- -- -- -- -- 8.6 (1.7) 3.6

MSCI EAFE (1.2) (9.7) (9.7) 2.5 -- -- -- --  5.2

5.6% 4,206,686$   Oppenheimer Developing Markets 0.7 -- -- -- -- -- -- 14.0 (8.2) (10.7) 6.2
MSCI EM (Emerging Markets) 0.8 -- -- -- -- -- -- 11.1   7.7

12.7% 9,449,238$   Pioneer Strategic Income 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.7 4.4 -- -- -- 5.9 4.4 2.7
12.6% 9,387,750$   Dodge & Cox Income Fund 2.6 4.4 4.4 -- 3.9 4.4 1.7

Barclays U.S. Aggregate 2.2 6.0 6.0 4.1 3.8 4.6 5.1 -- 0.5

5.4% 4,012,753$    GMO: Global Fixed Inc 3.8 10.3 10.3 3.9 3.7 7.2 4.6 5.7 5.7 4.6 0.0
Citigroup World Govt Bond Index 3.4 11.3 11.3 2.7 1.2 2.7 4.2 4.6  (0.4)

5.4% 4,005,806$   GMO: Emerging Mkt Fixed Inc 7.4 10.7 10.7 7.4 8.6 14.1 9.5 12.2 12.2 9.1 4.9
JPM EMBI Global Diversified 5.0 9.8 9.8 7.2 6.5 8.8 8.0 9.1  3.6

9.6% 7,171,126$     Combined Alternatives (1 mo lag) 1.1 (7.4) (7.4) 0.8 0.7 -- -- -- 1.5 2.3 (0.1)
HFRI FOFs Index (1 mo lag) 1.8 (5.9) (5.9) 1.5 2.3 -- -- -- 1.0



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

W&M BOV: Total Account
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

Manager vs Benchmark: Return
July 1996 - June 2016 (4-Quarter Moving Windows, Computed Quarterly)

R
et
u
rn

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

Q2 1998Q2 1999Q2 2000Q2 2001 Q2 2002Q2 2003Q2 2004Q2 2005Q2 2006Q2 2007Q2 2008Q2 2009Q2 2010 Q2 2011 Q2 2012Q2 2013 Q2 2014Q2 2015Q2 2016

BOV Total (net)
BOV Target Benchmark

Manager vs Benchmark: Return

July 1996 - June 2016 (4-Quarter Moving Windows, Computed Quarterly)

BOV Total (net)

BOV Target Benchmark

Jun 1998 Jun 1999 Jun 2000 Jun 2001 Jun 2002 Jun 2003 Jun 2004 Jun 2005 Jun 2006 Jun 2007 Jun 2008 Jun 2009 Jun 2010 Jun 2011 Jun 2012 Jun 2013 Jun 2014 Jun 2015 Jun 2016

15.20 10.35 0.37 3.89 -5.38 5.38 20.46 9.20 10.56 17.01 -4.38-21.8217.37 22.53 -2.71 13.44 15.81 2.03 -2.22

20.7714.38 9.91 -9.45 -9.78 3.46 18.45 10.37 10.21 18.09 -6.70-19.2315.56 20.50 2.26 11.82 15.83 3.41 1.58

Page 5

Executive Summary 
Total Fund: Fiscal Year Results

+ see footnote on previous page

2016 FYTD

BOV: -2.2%
Bench: +1.6%



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 6

* BOV Target Benchmark = From 1/1/03, 40% S&P 500, 12.5% Russell Midcap, 7.5% Russell 2000, 10% MSCI EAFE, 4% MSCI Emerging Mkts Free, 20% Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate, 6% Citi World
Government Bond Index. Prior to 1/1/03, 60% Russell 3000, 15% MSCI World Ex-US, 25% Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index. From 11/1/09, 25% S&P 500, 12% Russell Midcap, 7% Russell 2000,
9% MSCI EAFE, 2% MSCI Emerging Mkts Free, 30% Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate, 5% Citi World Government Bond Index, 5% JPM EMBI Global Diversified, 5% HFRI FoF Index.

Executive Summary 
Total Fund Risk/Return*

Since Changes (January 2003 - June 2016)
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

Risk / Return
January 2003 - June 2016 (Single Computation)

R
et
u
rn

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Standard Deviation

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14%

BOV Total (net)

Market Benchmark:
BOV Target Benchmark

Annualized Summary Statistics: January 2003 - June 2016

BOV Total (net)

BOV Target Benchmark

Return
(%)

Std Dev
(%)

Downside
Risk (%)

Beta vs.
Market

Alpha vs.
Market

R-Squared
vs. Market

Sharpe
Ratio

Tracking
Error

Observs.

7.49 12.82 9.50 1.11 -1.01 97.36 0.49 2.41 54.00

7.81 11.43 8.42 1.00 0.00 100.00 0.57 0.00 54.00

Long-Term July 1996 - June 2016
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

Risk / Return
July 1996 - June 2016 (Single Computation)

R
et
u
rn

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Standard Deviation

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14%

BOV Total (net)

Market Benchmark:
BOV Target Benchmark

Annualized Summary Statistics: July 1996 - June 2016

BOV Total (net)

BOV Target Benchmark

Return
(%)

Std Dev
(%)

Downside
Risk (%)

Beta vs.
Market

Alpha vs.
Market

R-Squared
vs. Market

Sharpe
Ratio

Tracking
Error

Observs.

6.84 12.77 9.53 0.99 -0.04 93.05 0.35 3.37 80.00

7.04 12.49 9.15 1.00 0.00 100.00 0.38 0.00 80.00



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 7

* Values (except “Alternatives”) are reflected at market as reported by SunTrust; Alternatives are reported by Wells Fargo Advisors; beginning and 

ending market values include accrued income on fixed income assets only.  Private Equity Partners II values were reported by W&M.

Executive Summary 
Total Fund Asset Allocation*

Policy BOV Portfolio Tactical Target

Domestic Global Domestic Non-US   

Manager Fixed Income Fixed Income Equity Equity Alternative Cash Equiv. Total

Goldman Sachs Large Growth 0 0 5,332,986 0 0 0 5,332,986

Blackrock Large Value 0 0 5,670,675 0 0 0 5,670,675

Dodge & Cox International 0 0 0 4,635,967 0 0 4,635,967

Grantham, Mayo Int'l and EMD 0 8,018,559 0 0 0 0 8,018,559

Artisan Midcap Value 0 0 4,968,447 0 0 0 4,968,447

MFS International Value 0 0 0 5,619,001 0 0 5,619,001

Dreyfus Small Cap 0 0 5,249,403 0 0 0 5,249,403

Oppenheimer Developing Mkts 0 0 0 4,206,686 0 0 4,206,686

iShares Russell Mid Growth ETF 0 0 4,519,914 0 0 0 4,519,914

Pioneer Strategic Income 9,449,238 0 0 0 0 0 9,449,238

Dodge & Cox Income Fund 9,387,750 0 0 0 0 0 9,387,750

Cash & Equivalents 0 0 0 0 0 372,476 372,476

Combined Alternatives 0 0 0 0 7,171,126 0 7,171,126

Total BOV Account 18,836,988 8,018,559 25,741,425 14,461,654 7,171,126 372,476 74,602,228

% of Total Fund 25.2% 10.7% 34.5% 19.4% 9.6% 0.5%  



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 8

•All account values (excluding “Alternatives”) are reported by SunTrust; “Alternative values are reported by Wells Fargo Advisors; to 

comply with GIPS Performance reporting standards, beginning and ending market values include fixed income accruals.  

Executive Summary 
Financial Reconciliation – 2016 Fiscal Year*

July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016

William & Mary

BOV Endowment

6/30/15 Market Value 80,763,997                      

Net Additions/Withdrawals (4,462,371)                        

Expenses (120,965)                           

Net Cash Flow (4,583,335)                       

Net Income 1,522,305                         

Net Realized Gain/(Loss) 3,565,346                         

Change Unrealized Gain/(Loss) (6,666,086)                        

Total Investment Gain/(Loss) (1,578,434)                       

6/30/16 Market Value 74,602,228                      



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 9

II. Equity Sector (Large-Cap Value*)
Periods Ending June 30, 2016 - Performance

* Please note that we have linked Blackrock’s composite historical returns for periods prior to 5/1/06 with BOV actual results starting on May 1, 2006.

Universe Comparisons (Rolling Three Years)
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

Manager vs Morningstar Large Value: Return Rank
April 2006 - June 2016 (36-Month Moving Windows, Computed Monthly)

R
et
u
rn
 R
an
k

100%

75%

Median

25%

0%

Mar 2009 Dec 2009 Dec 2011 Dec 2013 Jun 2016

BlackRock
Russell 1000 Value
5th to 25th Percentile
25th Percentile to Median
Median to 75th Percentile
75th to 95th Percentile

Manager vs Morningstar Large Value: Return

April 2006 - June 2016 (36-Month Moving Windows, Computed Monthly)

Median

BlackRock

Russell 1000 Value

Jun 2009
 

1258 mng

Jun 2010
 

1303 mng

Jun 2011
 

1339 mng

Jun 2012
 

1377 mng

Jun 2013
 

1293 mng

Jun 2014
 

1281 mng

Jun 2015
 

1310 mng

-9.4% -11.2% 2.6% 13.9% 17.2% 15.3% 16.2%

-10.32 -12.84 1.90 11.51 16.31 12.44 17.86

-11.1% -12.3% 2.3% 15.8% 18.5% 16.9% 17.3%

Universe Comparisons (Trailing Periods)
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

Manager vs Morningstar Large Value: Return
April 2006 - June 2016 (not annualized if less than 1 year)

R
et
u
rn

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

1 quarter YTD 1 year 3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

BlackRock
Russell 1000 Value
5th to 25th Percentile
25th Percentile to Median
Median to 75th Percentile
75th to 95th Percentile

Manager vs Morningstar Large Value: Return

April 2006 - June 2016 (not annualized if less than 1 year)

Median

BlackRock

Russell 1000 Value

1 quarter
 

1439 mng

YTD
 

1429 mng

1 year
 

1402 mng

3 years
 

1295 mng

5 years
 

1212 mng

7 years
 

1168 mng

10 years
 

1064 mng

2.86% 3.91% -0.32% 8.23% 9.62% 12.71% 5.61%

1.44% -0.12% -1.49% 8.98% 8.41% 12.19% 4.90%

4.58% 6.30% 2.86% 9.87% 11.35% 14.50% 6.13%



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 10

Equity Sector (Large-Cap Value*)
Period Ending June 30, 2016– Risk Measures

Information Ratio (Periods Ending June 2016)
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

Manager vs Benchmark: Information Ratio

April 2006 - June 2016 (not annualized if less than 1 year)

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 R
a
ti
o

-1.00

-0.80

-0.60

-0.40

-0.20

0.00

1 year 3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

BlackRock
Russell 1000 Value

Manager vs Benchmark: Information Ratio
April 2006 - June 2016 (not annualized if less than 1 year)

BlackRock

1 year 3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

-0.90 -0.24 -0.71 -0.55 -0.24

Return/Risk (April 2006 - June 2016)
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

April 2006 - June 2016 (Single Computation)

R
et
u
rn

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

Standard Deviation

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18%

BlackRock

Market Benchmark:
Russell 1000 Value

Annualized Summary Statistics: April 2006 - June 2016

BlackRock

Russell 1000 Value

Return
(%)

Std Dev
(%)

Beta vs.
Market

Alpha vs.
Market

R-Squared
vs. Market

Sharpe
Ratio

Observs.

4.77 17.12 0.94 -0.79 91.70 0.22 41.00

6.04 17.50 1.00 0.00 100.00 0.29 41.00

Return/Risk (Five Years Ending June 2016)
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

July 2011 - June 2016 (Single Computation)

R
et
u
rn

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

Standard Deviation

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16%

BlackRock

Market Benchmark:
Russell 1000 Value

Annualized Summary Statistics: July 2011 - June 2016

BlackRock

Russell 1000 Value

Return
(%)

Std Dev
(%)

Beta vs.
Market

Alpha vs.
Market

R-Squared
vs. Market

Sharpe
Ratio

Observs.

8.41 15.95 1.13 -3.85 94.56 0.52 20.00

11.35 13.74 1.00 0.00 100.00 0.82 20.00



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 11

Equity Sector (Large-Cap Growth)
Periods Ending June 30, 2016 - Performance

Universe Comparisons (Trailing Periods)
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

Manager vs Morningstar Large Growth: Return
May 2013 - June 2016 (not annualized if less than 1 year)

R
et
u
rn

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

1 quarter YTD 1 year 3 years

Goldman 
Russell 1000 Growth
5th to 25th Percentile
25th Percentile to Median
Median to 75th Percentile
75th to 95th Percentile

Manager vs Morningstar Large Growth: Return

May 2013 - June 2016 (not annualized if less than 1 year)

Median

Goldman 

Russell 1000 Growth

1 quarter
 

1693 mng

YTD
 

1693 mng

1 year
 

1670 mng

0.49% -1.79% -2.12%

-2.10% -4.86% -7.25%

0.61% 1.36% 3.02%

3 years
 

1626 mng

11.01%

7.35%

13.07%

Universe Comparisons (Rolling One Year)*
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

Manager vs Morningstar Large Growth: Return Rank
May 2013 - June 2016 (12-Month Moving Windows, Computed Monthly)

R
et
u
rn
 R
an
k

100%

75%

Median

25%

0%

Apr 2014 Dec 2014 Jun 2015 Dec 2015 Jun 2016

Goldman 
Russell 1000 Growth
5th to 25th Percentile
25th Percentile to Median
Median to 75th Percentile
75th to 95th Percentile

Manager vs Morningstar Large Growth: Return

May 2013 - June 2016 (12-Month Moving Windows, Computed Monthly)

Median

Goldman 

Russell 1000 Growth

May 2014
 

1805 mng

Jun 2014
 

1804 mng

Jun 2015
 

1757 mng

Sep 2015
 

1754 mng

21.1% 26.4% 9.8% 1.9%

20.9% 23.4% 8.1% -0.3%

22.2% 26.9% 10.6% 3.2%



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 12

Equity Sector (Large-Cap Growth)
Periods Ending June 30, 2016- Performance

Return/Risk (May 2013 - June 2016)
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

May 2013 - June 2016 (Single Computation)

R
et
u
rn

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Standard Deviation

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14%

Goldman 

Market Benchmark:
Russell 1000 Growth

Annualized Summary Statistics: May 2013 - June 2016

Goldman 

Russell 1000 Growth

Return
(%)

Std Dev
(%)

Beta vs.
Market

Alpha vs.
Market

R-Squared
vs. Market

Sharpe
Ratio

Observs.

6.46 12.75 1.02 -5.40 86.04 0.50 38.00

12.32 11.56 1.00 0.00 100.00 1.06 38.00

Information Ratio (Periods Ending June 2016)
Zephyr StyleADVISOR: Wells Fargo Advisors

Manager vs Benchmark: Information Ratio

May 2013 - June 2016 (not annualized if less than 1 year)

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 R
a
ti
o

-3.00

-2.50

-2.00

-1.50

-1.00

-0.50

0.00

1 year 3 years

Goldman 
Russell 1000 Growth

Manager vs Benchmark: Information Ratio
May 2013 - June 2016 (not annualized if less than 1 year)

Goldman 

1 year

-2.81

3 years

-1.20



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 13

Equity Sector (Large-Cap Combined) 
Characteristics - As of June 30, 2016

Blackrock Goldman

Data Source: Goldman, Blackrock, InvestorForce

Top Ten Equity Holdings 

% of 

Portfolio

JPMorgan Chase 4.9

Bank of America 3.4

Cisco Systems 3.3

Pfizer 3.2

US Bancorp 2.9

Comcast 2.7

Aetna Inc 2.5

Altria Group 2.2

Chevron 2.1 

Citigroup 2.1 

Top Ten Equity Holdings 

% of 

Portfolio

Apple Inc. 10.2

American Tower Corporation 7.6

Alphabet 7.0

Costco Wholesale 6.7

Facebook 6.2

Equinix Inc 5.8

Mastercard 5.7

Nike 5.7

Honeywell International 2.2

Intercontinental 5.1

Characteristic Blackrock Goldman

Combined 

BOV Large- S&P 500

Over/(Under) 

Weight

Median Cap ($MM) 28,680 73,500 50,402 18,110 32,292

Avg Cap ($MM) 106,520 144,660 125,005 127,610 (2,605)

Yield (%) 2.36 1.36 1.88 2.15 (0.27)

P/E Ratio 18.79 30.91 24.66 23.28 1.38

Price / Book 2.45 7.37 4.83 4.40 0.43

# of Stocks 82 21 96 505



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 14

Equity Sector (Large-Cap Combined) 
Characteristics - As of June 30, 2016

Data Source: Goldman, Blackrock, InvestorForce

Combined BOV Large-Cap Sector Distribution

Blackrock  

Weight

Goldman 

Weight

Combined 

BOV Large-

S&P 500 

Weight

Over / 

(Under) 

Energy 11.4% 0.0% 5.9% 7.4% -1.5%

Materials 3.9% 4.4% 4.2% 2.8% 1.4%

Industrials 6.6% 7.4% 7.0% 10.2% -3.2%

Consumer Discretionary 11.0% 17.2% 14.0% 12.3% 1.7%

Consumer Staples 6.7% 11.1% 8.8% 10.6% -1.8%

Health Care 18.4% 11.0% 14.8% 14.7% 0.1%

Financials 22.9% 19.1% 21.1% 15.7% 5.4%

Information Technology 15.8% 30.0% 22.7% 19.8% 2.9%

Telecomm Service 0.9% 0.0% 0.5% 2.9% -2.4%

Utilities 2.3% 0.0% 1.2% 3.6% -2.4%



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 15



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 16



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 17



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 18



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 19



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 20



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 21



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 22



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 23



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 24



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 25

Alternatives
Asset Allocation- As of June 30, 2016

Data Source:  Wells Fargo Advisors

Alternative Breakdown (%)

Aurora Diversified II
14.3%

Alternative Income 
Legends
11.7%

Apollo Natural Resources
0.9%

BlueTrend
6.2%

Graham
5.6%

ABS Long/Short
9.5%

Skybridge
16.5%

Corbin Pinehurst
26.9%

Gresham Commodities
2.2%

Landmark Equity Partners 
XV
1.4%

Landmark Equity Partners 
XIV
2.1%

Siguler Guff DRE
2.8%

Manager % of Account

Estimated               

Market Value

Verified 

Values

Verified 

As Of

Aurora Diversified II 14.3% $1,025,342 $1,012,479 6/30/2016

Alternative Income Legends 11.7% $835,809 $877,262 6/30/2016

Apollo Natural Resources 0.9% $64,575 $64,575 6/30/2016

BlueTrend 6.2% $447,438 $459,168 6/30/2016

Graham 5.6% $403,144 $419,249 6/30/2016

ABS Long/Short 9.5% $680,034 $729,147 6/30/2016

Skybridge 16.5% $1,181,449 $1,173,415 6/30/2016

Corbin Pinehurst 26.9% $1,928,994 $1,929,211 6/30/2016

Gresham Commodities 2.2% $158,536 $163,285 6/30/2016

Landmark Equity Partners XV 1.4% $99,010 $74,476 6/30/2016

Landmark Equity Partners XIV 2.1% $148,424 $99,815 6/30/2016

Siguler Guff DRE 2.8% $198,371 $182,748 6/30/2016

Total 100.0% $7,171,126 $7,184,829



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 26

Alternatives
Performance - As of June 30, 2016

Data Source:  Wells Fargo Advisors

All returns are on a one-month lag.  Performance greater than 1 year is annualized.

% of 

Account  $ Value 2q16 FYTD

One 

Year

Three 

Years*

Five 

Years*

Incept 

(Mgr)*

Incept 

Bench*

Performance 

Inception

100% 7,171,126$     Combined Alternatives (1 mo lag) 1.1 (7.4) (7.4) 0.8 0.7 1.5 2.3 Jan-10

HFRI FoF Index (1 mo lag) 1.8 (5.9) (5.9) 1.6 1.5  

Lower Volatility

14% 1,025,342$    Aurora Diversified II 0.7 (6.2) (6.2) 0.8 0.7 0.8 1.9 Feb-11

HFRI Conservative Index 1.1 (3.5) (3.5) 1.9 1.8

Diversified

27% 1,928,994$    Corbin Pinehurst 4.0 (6.0) (6.0) 2.2 3.5 4.2 2.3 Jan-10

12% 835,809$      Alternative Income Legends 3.8 (8.6) (8.6) -- -- (3.4) 0.5 Jun-14

16% 1,181,449$     SkyBridge 0.7 (11.0) (11.0) -- -- (4.3) (0.9) Oct-14

HFRI Fund of Funds 1.8 (5.9) (5.9) 1.6 1.5

Hedged Equity

9% 680,034$      ABS Global L/S (K2 prior to 12/12) 1.2 (7.8) (7.8) 3.0 2.9 3.2 3.9 Jan-10

HFRI Equity Hedge 5.3 (5.5) (5.5) 2.6 2.1

Managed Futures 

6% 447,438$      BlueTrend (10.1) (5.3) (5.3) (0.7) (1.9) (0.8) 0.7 Feb-11

6% 403,144$       Graham (7.4) (11.2) (11.2) 2.7 (0.0) (0.4) 1.6 Jan-10

CS Tremont Managed Futures Index (8.8) (4.8) (4.8) 3.2 0.9

Commodities

2% 158,536$       Gresham Commodities 11.8 (18.7) (18.7) (14.4) -- (10.9) (11.1) Feb-11

1% 64,575$        Apollo Natural Resources (3.2) -- -- -- --

Dow UBS Commodity Index 12.5 (15.3) (15.3) (13.2) --

Private Equity

2% 148,424$       Landmark Equity Partners XIV 12.4 Jan-10

1% 99,010$         Landmark Equity Partners XV 21.3 Jun-14

3% 198,371$       Sigular Guff DRE 10.5 Mar-11



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Page 27

IV. Green Fund
Performance - As of June 30, 2016

Peformance Inception Date: January 23, 2009 Since Inception ROR: 8.96%

Fiscal Year-To-Date 2016 ROR: 0.34%

Beginning Market Value (July 1, 2015): 381,908$          

Quarter Contributions Withdrawals

3Q15

4Q15 20,000$                  

1Q16 20,000$                  

2Q16

Total Net Flows FYTD 40,000$            

Invested Capital FYTD 421,908$          

Appreciation/Depreciation 2,484$              

Ending Market Value (June 30, 2016) 424,392$          

Returns are calculated net of transaction costs and net of management fees.

Returns greater than one year are annualized.

Account data is on a trade date basis and accrued income is included in beginning and ending values. Performance is based on current market prices, as available.

Certain assets are excluded from Beginning and Ending Values and are not included in performance calculations. Selected annuities, certain types of direct investments, mutual funds held outside the firm,

precious metals, coins, bullion, or any assets subject to tax- withholding (TEFRA) are among the assets not included in values or performance calculations.

Wells Fargo Advisors is the trade name used by two separate registered broker-dealers: Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC, and Wells Fargo Advisors Financial Network, LLC, Members SIPC, non-bank affiliates of

Wells Fargo & Company.

This presentation is not complete unless accompanied by the detailed explanation included in the Glossary of Terms. This report is not the official record of your account. However, it has been prepared to

assist you with your investment planning and is for informational purposes only. Your Client Statement is the official record of your account. Therefore, if there are any discrepancies between this report and

your Client Statement, you should rely on the Client Statement and call your local Branch Manager with any questions. Cost data and acquisition dates provided by you are not verified. Transactions requiring

tax consideration should be reviewed carefully with your accountant or tax advisor. Unless otherwise indicated, market prices/values are the most recent closing prices available at the time of this report,

and are subject to change. Prices may not reflect the value at which securities could be sold. Past performance does not guarantee future results.

This information is provided to complement but not replace your account-specific advisory performance report.

8.9%

21.5%

-3.7%

11.2%

15.6%

3.9%

0.3%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

FIRM:Wells Fargo Advisors is the trade name used by two separate registered broker-dealers: Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC., and Wells Fargo Financial Network, LLC, Members SIPC, non-bank

affiliates of Wells Fargo & Company. Investment and Insurance products are: NOT FDIC-INSURED/NOT BANK-GUARANTEED/MAY LOSE VALUE.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: To review important information about certain relationships and potential conflicts of interest that may exist between Wells Fargo Advisors , its affiliates, and

the companies that are mentioned in this report, please visit the our research disclosure page at https://www.wellsfargoadvisors.com/disclosures/research.htm or call your Financial Advisor.

STATEMENT OF OPINION: This and/or the accompanying information was prepared by or obtained from sources which Wells Fargo Advisors believes to be reliable but does not

guarantee its accuracy. Any opinions expressed or implied herein are not necessarily the same as those of Wells Fargo Advisors or its affiliates and are subject to change without notice. The

report herein is not a complete analysis of every material fact in respect to any company, industry or security. Any market prices are only indications of market values and are subject to change.

The material has been prepared or is distributed solely for information purposes and is not a solicitation or an offer to buy any security or instrument or to participate in any trading strategy.

Additional information is available upon request.

ASSET CLASS SUITABILITY: Stocks of small companies are typically more volatile than stocks of larger companies. They often involve higher risks because they may lack the management

expertise, financial resources, product diversification and competitive strengths to endure adverse economic conditions. High-yield, non-investment grade bonds are only suitable for aggressive

investors willing to take greater risks, which could result in loss of principal and interest payments. Global/International investing involves risks not typically associated with US investing,

including currency fluctuations, political instability, uncertain economic conditions and different accounting standards. Because the futures and commodity markets can be highly unpredictable –

often swinging dramatically – investing in currency and commodities is not suitable for all investors. You may lose your entire investment , and in some cases, more than you invested.

PAST PERFORMANCE: Past performance is not an indication of future results.

ASSET CLASS PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS: Long Term Treasuries = BC Treasury Long; Municipals = BC Municipal; Foreign Bonds = Salomon World BIG – IB; US

Govt/Credit = BC Govt/Credit; Mtge Backed Securities = ML Mortgage Master; Corporate Bonds = Salomon Corporate; 90 Day T-Bills = Salomon; Japanese Stocks = Salomon Japan BMI;

High Yield Bonds = ML High Yield Master; Small Cap US Value = RU 2000 Value; MidCap US Stocks = RU Midcap; Large Cap US Value = RU 1000 Value; European Stocks = Salomon

Europe BMI; Small Cap US Stocks = RU 2000; Lg Cap US Growth = RU 1000 Growth; Latin American Stocks = Salomon Latin America BMI; Sm Cap US Growth = RU 2000 Growth

BROAD EQUITY MARKET & SECTOR PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS: Large-Cap = S&P 500 or Russell 1000; Mid-Cap = RU Midcap; Small-Cap = RU 2000;

International = MSCI EAFE

DATA SOURCES: Information found in this document was derived from the following sources: Zephyr Associates, Investor Force/MSCI, Barclays Capital, Standard & Poor’s, Morningstar,

Thomson Reuters, direct material from managers/funds, and other sources we deem reliable.

General Disclosure

Page 28



Information contained within this report is designed solely for the use by The College of William & Mary BOV Endowment, including its

Officers, Investment Committee, and administrative staff. Distribution without the express written consent of Wells Fargo is strictly prohibited.

THE  

OPTIMAL 
 SERVICE GROUP 
 

of Wells Fargo Advisors 

Dow Jones Industrial Average - This index is comprised of 30 "blue-chip" US stocks selected for their history of successful growth and wide interest among investors. The DJIA represents about 20% of the total market
value of all US stocks and about 25% of the NYSE market capitalization. It is a price-weighted arithmetic average, with the divisor adjusted to reflect stock splits and the occasional stock switches in the index.
NASDAQ Composite - A cap-weighted index comprised of all common stocks that are listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market (National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation system).
S&P 500 - A broad-based measurement of changes in stock market conditions based on the average performance of 500 widely held common stocks. This index does not contain the 500 largest companies nor the most
expensive stocks traded in the U.S. While many of the stocks are among the largest, this index also includes many relatively small companies. This index consists of approximately 380 industrial, 40 utility, 10 transportation
and 70 financial companies listed on U.S. market exchanges. It is a capitalization-weighted index (stock price times number of shares outstanding), calculated on a total return basis with dividends reinvested.
Russell 1000 - The 1000 largest companies in the Russell 3000 index, based on market capitalization.
Russell 1000 Growth - A segment of the Russell 1000 with a greater-than-average growth orientation. Companies in this index have higher price-to-book and price-earnings ratios, lower dividend yields and higher
forecasted growth values than the Russell 1000 Value index.
Russell 1000 Value - Represents a segment of the Russell 1000 with a less-than-average growth orientation. Companies in this index have low price-to-book and price-earnings ratios, higher dividend yields and lower
forecasted growth values than the Russell 1000 Growth Index.
Russell Mid Cap - The index consisting of the bottom 800 securities in the Russell 1000 as ranked by total market capitalization, and it represents over 35% of the Russell 1000 total market cap.
Russell 2000 - The 2000 smallest companies in the Russell 3000 index.
Russell 2000 Growth - A segment of the Russell 2000 with a greater-than-average growth orientation. Companies in this index have higher price-to-book and price-earnings ratios, lower dividend yields and higher
forecasted growth values than the Russell 2000 Value index.
Russell 2000 Value - A segment of the Russell 2000 with a less-than-average growth orientation. Companies in this index have low price-to-book and price-earnings ratios, higher dividend yields and lower forecasted
growth values than the Russell 2000 Growth index.
Russell 2500 - The index consisting of the bottom 500 stocks in the Russell 1000(as ranked by market capitalization) and all of the stocks in the Russell 2000. This index is intended to be used as a measure of small to
medium/small stock performance, and it represents over 22% of the Russell 3000 total market cap.
MSCI EAFE - A market capitalization-weighted index representing all of the MSCI developed markets outside North America. It comprises 20 of the 22 countries in the MSCI World. These 20 countries include the 14
European countries in the MSCI Europe and the 6 Pacific countries in the MSCI Pacific. This index is created by aggregating the 20 different country indexes, all of which are created separately.
MSCI World - This market capitalization-weighted index represents all 22 of the MSCI developed markets in the world. It is created by aggregating the 22 different country indexes, all of which are created separately.
MSCI Emerging Markets Free (EMF) - A market capitalization-weighted index representing 26 of the emerging markets in the world. Several factors are used to designate whether a country is considered to be emerging
vs. developed, the most common of which is Gross Domestic Product Per Capita. The "Free" aspect indicates that this index includes only securities that are allowed to be purchased by global investors. This index is
created by aggregating the 26 different country indexes, all of which are created separately.
Barclays Government/Credit - This index includes all bonds that are in the Barclays Capital Government Bond and the Barclays Capital Credit Bond indices.
Barclays Government Intermediate - All bonds covered by the Barclays Capital Government Bond index with maturities of 1 and 10 years.
Barclays Aggregate Bond - This index is made up of the Barclays Capital Government/Credit, the Mortgage-Backed Securities, and the Asset-Backed Securities indices. All issues in the index are rated investment grade or
higher, have at least one year to maturity, and have an outstanding par value of at least $100 million.
Barclays Government Long Term - All bonds covered by the Barclays Capital Government Bond index with maturities of 10 years or greater.
Barclays Municipal Bond - This market cap weighted index includes investment grade tax-exempt bonds and is classified into four main sectors: General Obligation, Revenue, Insured, and Pre-refunded. To be included
in this index, the original transaction size of a bond must have been greater than $50 million.
Merrill Lynch Convertibles - The convertible securities used in this index span all corporate sectors and must have a par amount outstanding of $25 million or more. The maturity must be at least one year. The coupon
range must be equal to or greater than zero and all quality of bonds are included. Excluded from this index are preferred equity redemption stocks. When the component bonds of this index convert into common stock, the
converted securities are dropped from the index.
Merrill Lynch High Yield Master - Market-cap weighted index providing a broad-based measure of bonds in the US domestic bond market rated below investment grade but not in default. Includes only issues with a
credit rating of BB1 or below as rated by Moody’s and/or S&P, at least $100 million in face value outstanding and a remaining term to final maturity equal to or greater than one year.
Dow Jones Wilshire REIT Index - A measurement of equity REITs and Real Estate Operating Companies. No special-purpose or health care REITs are included. It is a market capitalization-weighted index for which
returns are calculated monthly using buy and hold methodology; it is rebalanced monthly.
Citigroup 3 Month Treasury Bill - Representing the monthly return equivalents of yield averages that are not marked to market, this index is an average of the last three three-month Treasury bill issues.
50/50 Blend (S&P 500/BCIGC) – A blended benchmark consisting of 50% S&P 500 and 50% Barclays Capital Government/Credit Intermediate indices.

General Disclosure

Page 29



 August 28, 2016 

 

THE COLLEGE OF WILLIAM AND MARY 

BOARD OF VISITORS 

OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES 

 

2016-2017 
 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Todd A. Stottlemyer, Rector 

H. Thomas Watkins III, Vice Rector 

Sue H. Gerdelman, Secretary 

Lynn M. Dillon 

Thomas R. Frantz  

Lisa E. Roday 

John Charles Thomas 

Michael J. Fox 
 

COMMITTEE ON ACADEMIC AFFAIRS  
Lynn M. Dillon, Chair 

Karen Kennedy Schultz, Vice Chair 

Warren W. Buck III 

S. Douglas Bunch 

James A. Hixon 

Anne Leigh Kerr 

Michael R. Halleran 
 

COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS  
William H. Payne II, Chair 

John Charles Thomas, Vice Chair 

Warren W. Buck III 

James A. Hixon 

Anne Leigh Kerr 

Karen Kennedy Schultz 

DeRonda M. Short 

Samuel E. Jones 
 

(Design Review Board – Will Payne, John Charles Thomas) 
 

COMMITTEE ON ATHLETICS  
DeRonda M. Short, Chair 

H. Thomas Watkins III, Vice Chair 

S. Douglas Bunch 

Thomas R. Frantz 

Sue H. Gerdelman 

Edward C. Driscoll, Jr. 



2 

 

COMMITTEE ON AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE  
John Charles Thomas, Chair 

Christopher M. Little, Vice Chair 

William H. Payne II 

DeRonda M. Short 

Brian P. Woolfolk 

Kent B. Erdahl 

Kiersten L. Boyce 

Samuel E. Jones 
 

COMMITTEE ON FINANCIAL AFFAIRS  
H. Thomas Watkins III, Chair  

James A. Hixon, Vice Chair 

S. Douglas Bunch 

Lynn M. Dillon 

Thomas R. Frantz 

Anne Leigh Kerr 

Christopher M. Little 

Brian P. Woolfolk 

Samuel E. Jones 
 

(Investments Subcommittee – Lynn Dillon and Tom Watkins) 
 

RICHARD BLAND COLLEGE COMMITTEE  
Sue H. Gerdelman, Chair 

Lynn M. Dillon, Vice Chair 

Warren W. Buck III 

William H. Payne, II 

Lisa E. Roday 

Karen Kennedy Schultz 

Brian P. Woolfolk 

D. Jill Mitten, faculty representative 

David J. Snyder IV, student representative 
Debbie L. Sydow 
 



3 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE WHOLE: 
 

COMMITTEE ON UNIVERSITYADVANCEMENT 
Sue H. Gerdelman, Chair 

Christopher M. Little, Vice Chair 

Matthew T. Lambert 
 

COMMITTEE ON STRATEGIC INITIATIVES AND NEW VENTURES 
Thomas R. Frantz, Chair 

H. Thomas Watkins III, Vice Chair 

Henry R. Broaddus 
 

COMMITTEE ON STUDENT AFFAIRS 

Lisa E. Roday, Chair 

William H. Payne II, Vice Chair 

Virginia M. Ambler 

 

 

Board Liaison to MONROE LEGACY WORKING GROUP – Chris Little 

Board Liaison to RACE RELATIONS IMPLEMENTATION TEAM – Lisa Roday 



 

 

THE BOARD OF VISITORS 

OF THE COLLEGE 

OF WILLIAM & MARY 

IN VIRGINIA 

                                                                               
 

 

                                                                               
 

 

BOARD MEETING 

Board Room - Blow Memorial Hall  

September 23, 2016 

 



 

MEETING AGENDA 
Board of Visitors 

The College of William and Mary 
 

September 23, 2016 - 10:45 a.m. 
Board Room - Blow Memorial Hall 

 
 
I. Welcome and call to order Rector Todd A. Stottlemyer 
 
II.  Approval of Minutes Mr. Stottlemyer 
 
 A.  April 20-22, 2016 Annual Board Meeting 
 B.  July 21-22, 2016 Board Retreat 
 
III.  Opening Remarks   Mr. Stottlemyer 
      President W. Taylor Reveley III 
 
IV.  Closed Session (if necessary) Mr. Stottlemyer 
 
V.  Reports of Standing Committee chairs 
 

A.  Richard Bland College Committee   Sue H. Gerdelman 
 

 1. Resolution 1: Appointments to Fill Vacancies in the  
    Instructional Faculty tab #1 

 2. Resolution 2: Appointments to Fill Vacancies in the  
    Professionals and Professional Faculty tab #2 

 3. Resolution 3:  Resolution to Approve 9c Bond Sale Request tab #3 

 4. Resolution 4: 2016-2022 Six-Year Plan Update tab #4 
 

B. Committee on Athletics DeRonda M. Short 
 
C. Committee on Administration, Buildings and Grounds  William H. Payne II 
 

 1. Resolution 8: Resolution to Approve Property Acquisition:  
     6 Riverview Avenue tab #8 

 2. Resolution 9: Resolution to Approve Land Use Permit from the 
   Virginia Department of Transportation for Under- 
   ground Saltwater Utilities at Spencer Road tab #9 

 3. Resolution 10: Resolution of the Board of Visitors of the College 
     of William and Mary 9(D) Reimbursement  
     Pooled Bond Program: Zable Stadium tab #10 

 4. Resolution 11: Resolution of the Board of Visitors of the College 
     of William and Mary 9(D) Reimbursement  
     Pooled Bond Program: Busch Field Turf tab #11 



Board of Visitors 
MEETING AGENDA 
September 23, 2016 

  
 5. Resolution 12: Resolution of the Board of Visitors of the 
   College of William and Mary 9(D) Sale Pooled 
   Bond Program: Renovate/Expand Zable  
   Stadium and Replace Busch Field Turf tab #12 

 6. Resolution 13: Resolution to Approve 2016 Master Plan of  
   James Monroe’s Highland tab #13 
 
D. Committee on University Advancement Sue H. Gerdelman 
 
E. Committee on Audit and Compliance John Charles Thomas 
 
F. Committee on Financial Affairs  H. Thomas Watkins III 
 

 1. Resolution 14: College of William and Mary 2016-18 
    Six-Year Plan Update tab #14 

 
G. Committee on Student Affairs Lisa E. Roday 

 
H. Committee on Strategic Initiatives and New Ventures Thomas R. Frantz 

 

I. Committee on Academic Affairs  Lynn M. Dillon 

 

  1. Resolution 5: Appointments to Fill Vacancies in the  
      Instructional Faculty tab #5 

  2. Resolution 6: Designated Professorships tab #6 

3. Resolution 7: Faculty Leaves of Absence tab #7 
 

J. Monroe Legacy Working Group Christopher M. Little 
 

K. Race Relations Implementation Team Ms. Roday 
 
VI.  Old Business  Mr. Stottlemyer 
 
VII.  New Business  Mr. Stottlemyer 
 
VIII.  Executive Session (if necessary)  Mr. Stottlemyer 
 
IX.  Closing remarks 
 
X.  Adjournment Mr. Stottlemyer 

 

BOARD DINING ROOM: 
 
@1:00 p.m. Lunch 

































































































































































Board of Visitors  Resolution    9  

 

September 21-23, 2016  Page   3  of   3  

 

 
 

 



























 CLOSED MEETINGS 
 

The Board of Visitors may consider in closed session certain matters, including those listed 
below.  The Code is very specific as to how these matters will be described in public session 
and in closing the meeting the motion must be specific as to the matters to be considered in 
closed session.  There may be no discussion in closed session of matters not identified in the 
original motion. 
 

I move that the  _____________ Committee convene in Closed Session for the 
purpose of discussing ___________________________, as provided for in 
Section 2.2-3711.A., ___ . 

 
 

Code Section  Topic 
 

2.2-3711.A.1.  Personnel matters involving identifiable college employees (i.e.,  
   appointments, performance evaluations, leaves, etc.) or  
   discussion of candidates for employment. 

 
2.2-3711.A.2.  Matters concerning any identifiable student 

 
2.2-3711.A.3.  Acquisition of real property for a public purpose or disposition of  
   publicly held real property  

 
2.2-3711.A.4.  Protection of individual privacy in personal matters not related to  
   public business 

 
 2.2-3711.A.6.  Investment of public funds where bargaining or competition is involved 
 

2.2-3711.A.7.  Consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members  
   pertaining to actual or probable litigation or consultation with legal  
   counsel regarding specific legal matters requiring legal advice 

 
2.2-3711.A.8.  Gifts, bequests and fund-raising activities, or grants and contracts  
   for services or work to be performed by the College 

 
2.2-3711.A.10. Honorary degrees 
 
2.2-3711.A.19. Reports or plans related to security of any College facility, building  
   or structure, or safety of persons using such facility, building or  
   structure 
 
2.2-3711.A.29. Public contracts involving the expenditure of public funds 

 
 
§2.2-3712.D. - At the conclusion of any closed meeting, the Board of Visitors shall immediately 
reconvene in open meeting and shall take a roll call or other recorded vote to be included in the minutes, 
certifying that to the best of each member=s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements under this chapter and (ii) only such public business matters as were 
identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered 
in the meeting by the public body. Any member of the public body who believes that there was a 
departure from the requirements of subdivisions (i) and (ii), shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his judgment, has taken place.  The statement shall be recorded in 
the minutes. 




	01-Committees cover sheet.pdf
	02-pages 1-9.Committee Meeting Schedule and Agenda Items
	02-pages 1-9.Committee Meeting Schedule and Agenda Items.pdf
	pages 7-9.AGENDA.09.2016

	03-pages 10-99.Richard Bland College Committee
	RBC.pages 10-11.20160915130211216.pdf
	pag 12-39.20160915125534302
	Enclosure A.pages 40-64.BOV RBC19 PROGRESS REPORT FINAL 9 9 2016
	pages 65-67.20160915125747408
	Enclosure C.pages 68-72.ese ReportREV9616RD
	Enclosure D.pages 73-74.Marketing Report FINAL DATE REVISED BOV September 2016 (002)
	Enclosure E.pages 75-77.COREY FINAL 9 8 2016
	pp 78-85.20160915130001749
	Enclosure G.pages 3-16.pages 86-99.RBC Office of Student Activities and Leaderrship Annual Report FY16

	04-page 100.Executive Committee
	05-pages 101-111.Academic Affairs
	06-page 112.Audit&Compliance
	07-page 113.Athletics
	08-pages 114-141.Administration-Buildings & Grounds
	07-pages 114-123.Administration-Buildings & Grounds
	Resolution 9.page 3.124
	125-141.20160915130450737.pdf

	09-pages 142.Strategic Initiatives&New Ventures
	10-page 143.Student Affairs
	11-page 144.Advancement
	11-page 144.Advancement.pdf
	advancement minutes.20160915135139951

	12-pages 145-165.Financial Affairs
	13-Enclosure K.Wells Fargo.WMBOV 2Q16
	14-Board Officers & Committees
	15-Full Board Meeting cover sheet
	16-Full Board Meeting Agenda
	17-Full Board Meeting Minutes.April 20-22 & Retreat July 21-22
	18-Full Board Meeting Agenda Items
	19-Richard Bland Resolutions 1-4
	20-William & Mary Resolutions 5-14
	21-Future Board Meeting Dates 2016-2017
	22-Closed Meeting.FOI



